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Board’s Report
Dear Members,

Your Directors present herewith the Sixth Annual Report 
along with Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  	 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Total Income 542.20 2,114.10
Expenditure 576.68 878.10
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (570.22) 1,236.02

DIVIDEND

The Company is not able to declare any dividend on account 
of losses. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company 
did not declare any dividend during the financial year 2019-20.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the total income of the Company 
was Rs. 542.20 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 2,114.10 Lakhs 
during the comparable previous year. The total income for the 
previous year FY 2018-19 includes Dividend Income of Rs. 
127.50 Lakhs. The Loss after tax for the year was Rs. 570.22 
Lakhs as compared to a profit of Rs. 1,236.02 Lakhs during 
the previous year, on account of suspension of the Charter 
operations.

Covid-19, still has a  large impact on business across the 
country which will affect our business in the long run.

CHARTER OPERATIONS

During the quarter ended September 30, 2019, the air craft 
which was being operated, as per Scheme of Arrangement 
approved by the Hon’ble Madras High Court between the 
Company and Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited, as 
part of the Charter business veered off the runway during 
landing, resulting in extensive damage to the aircraft. This 
incident was duly reported to BSE Ltd. and the Directorate 
General of Civil Aviation. The aircraft remains grounded 
since the incident. As a result, the Charter operations of the 
Company remains suspended with effect from September 12, 
2019. The Company has initiated the process of claim with the 
Insurance Company.

The Company was required to impair it’s investment in First 
Airways Inc. to comply with Ind AS requirements.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Statutory Auditors, M/s. MSKA & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, hold the office till the conclusion of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting (AGM).

In respect of Emphasis of Matter by Auditors on the 
Standalone & Consolidated Financial Statement, it has been 
explained in Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
which are self explanatory and therefore do not call for any 
further comments.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Company has appointed M/s DVD 
& Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in practice to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The report 
of the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as Annexure D.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred 
any amount to the reserves.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the Articles 
of Association of the Company, Mr. Salil Taneja retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Mr. Shyam Powar was appointed as Additional Director 
(Independent category) w.e.f. September 27, 2019 and 
holds office upto the conclusion of the ensuing AGM. 
Member’s approval shall be sought in the ensuing AGM for 
his appointment as director not liable to retire by rotation 
(Independent category) for a period of two years.

The Independent Directors of the Company have given a 
declaration pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act.

Mr. Vijay Dutt Madhav Purekar, Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, resigned w.e.f. September 19, 2019.

Ms. Shubhanshi Jain, Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer of the Company resigned w.e.f. September 30, 2019. 
Thereafter, Mr. Sourabh Sonawane was appointed as the 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f. February 
13, 2020.

The annual performance evaluation has been done by the 
Board of it’s own performance and that of it’s Committees 
and individual Directors based on the criteria for evaluation 
of performance of independent directors and the Board of 
Directors and it’s Committees as approved by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee which the Board found to be 
satisfactory.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors 
of the Company posses adequate proficiency, experience, 
expertise and integrity to best serve the interest of the 
Company.

The brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed / 
re-appointed is given in the notice convening the AGM.
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The Composition of Board of Directors of the Company is as 
follows;

Name of the 
Director Category

No. of Board 
Meetings 

attended during 
F.Y 2019-20

Mr. Salil Taneja Whole Time 
Director 4

Mr. Arvind Nanda Independent 
Director 6

Mr. Shyam Powar1
Additional Director 

(Independent 
category)

-

Mrs. Rahael 
Shobhana Joseph

Non-Executive 
Director 5

Mr.Poornalingam 
Ramasubramaniam 2

Independent 
Director 3

1 	� Appointed as Additional Director (Independent category) 
w.e.f. September  27, 2019.

2	� Vacated the office of Independent Director w.e.f. 
September 27, 2019.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review 6 Board Meetings were held as 
under:
Sr. No. Date of Meeting

1. April 23, 2019
2. June 24, 2019
3. August 13, 2019
4. September 27, 2019
5. November 07, 2019
6. January 17, 2020
7. February 13, 2020

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM

The present composition of Audit Committee is as follows:
Name of Director Chairman / Member
Mr. Shyam Powar Chairman
Mrs. Rahael Shobhana Joseph  Member
Mr. Arvind Nanda Member

The Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism of the Company 
as established by the Board is available on it’s website

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

As on date of this report, the Company has five direct and 
indirect subsidiaries. A report in Form AOC-1 on performance 
and financial position of the subsidiaries as per the Companies 
Act, 2013 is provided in the Financial Statements forming part 
of this Annual Report.

The Company has framed a Policy for determining 
Material Subsidiaries which is available on it’s website 
www.taalent.co.in

TAAL Tech India Private Limited (TTIPL) is the largest 
operating subsidiary of the Company. While the business 
of this subsidiary was affected on account of Covid-19, the 
profitability for the year was better.

During the period under review, TTIPL has completed 
buyback of 50,000 equity shares from its erstwhile CEO. As 
a result, the shareholding of the Company in TTIPL stands 
increased to 89.47 % from 85% due to reduction of share 
capital of TTIPL.

FIXED DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is forming part 
of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
provisions relating to Corporate Governance Report are not 
applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Though the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding 
Corporate Social Responsibility are not attracted to the 
Company. However, the Company has positive gestures 
towards philanthropic activities in future.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (c) read with 
Section 134 (5) of the Act, your Directors make the following 
statement:

i.	� that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii.	� that the Directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates, that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year March 31, 2020 and of the 
profit of the Company for that period;

iii.	� that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv.	� that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on 
a going concern basis;

v.	� that the Directors had laid down internal financial controls 
to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively.

vi.	� that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is forming part of 
this Report as Annexure A.
As per Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Annual Return referred to in Section 92(3) has been placed 
on the website of the Company www.taalent.co.in.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & 
OUTGO
The particulars as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act 
is forming part of this Report as Annexure-B.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company on 
Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence 
of a Director and the criteria for performance evaluation as 
laid down by Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
been defined in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 
The said policy is available on it’s website at www.taalent.
co.in.

Details pertaining to remuneration of directors and 
employees’ required under Section 197(12) of the Act read 
with Rules made there under is forming part of this Report as 
Annexure-C.

A statement showing details of employees in terms of Rule 5(2)
and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report. 
However, in terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Annual 
Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to 
the members and others entitled there to. The said statement 
is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered 
Office of the Company during business hours on working days 
up to the date of the ensuing AGM. If any Member is interested 
in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the 
Company Secretary in this regard. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND 
INVESTMENTS
The Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
covered under Section 186 of the Act are provided in the 
Notes to Financial Statements forming part of this Annual 
Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has a robust risk management framework to 
identify and mitigate risks arising out of internal as well as 
external factors.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has adequate Internal Control System, 
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of it’s 
operations. It is routinely tested and overseen by Statutory as 
well as Internal Auditors.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES

The particulars of all Related Party Transactions in terms of 
applicable Accounting Standards are provided under Notes 
to the financial statements forming part of this Annual Report.

GENERAL

1.	� No significant or material orders were passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

2.	� There is no change in the nature of business of the 
Company.

3.	� There have been no material changes and commitments, 
if any, affecting the financial position of the Company 
which has occurred between the end of the financial year 
of the Company to which the financial report relates and 
the date of the report.

4.	� The provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

5.	� During the year under review, there were no cases 
filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013.

6.	� The Company has complied with applicable Secretarial 
Standards.

7.	� Maintenance of Cost records under Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Shareholders may contact Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent of the Company at the following address:

Link Intime India Private Limited
Block No. 202, 2nd Floor, Akshay Complex, Near Ganesh 
Temple, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune – 411001.
Tel.: 020-26160084 Fax: 020- 26163503.
E-mail: pune@linkintime.co.in

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors take this opportunity to thank their Customers, 
Bankers, Vendors, Aviation authorities, Government and 
regulatory authorities and all other stakeholders for their 
valuable sustained support. The Directors also express their 
deep appreciation to all the employees’ for their hard work, 
dedication and commitment.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Place: Pune	 Salil Taneja
Date: July 30, 2020	 Chairman
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INDUSTRY STRUCTURE

As one of the fastest growing airline markets, India is the 
7th largest civil aviation market in the world, according to the 
International Air Transport Association (IATA). Since 2014, 
India has overtaken major domestic markets like Australia, 
Japan, Brazil, and Russia in terms Revenue Passenger 
Kilometres (RPK) flown, and accounts for around 1.50% of 
total industrywide RPKs.

India is poised to experience a rapid upswing in the business 
aviation sector due to it’s strategic geographic location, 
favourable demographics and robust economic growth. The 
civil aviation sector in India is growing rapidly with a annual 
double digit growth in passenger traffic in the last two years. It 
has contributed significantly to the growth of international civil 
aviation sector.

Non Scheduled Aviation Services in India have picked up 
steadily in line with overall economic growth.

While the long term prospects of the industry remain positive, 
there will be huge impact on aviation on account of the 
Covid-19 pandemic in the short run. All aviation activities were 
suspended for many months and are operating at a highly 
curtailed level.

ABOUT THE COMPANY

The Company has it’s presence in the segment in the Aviation 
Industry in Air Charter business.

The Company operates one Cessna Citation CJ2+ type of 
aircraft with a seating capacity of seven passengers. The 
aircraft is based at Pune airport and the Company has a loyal 
set of Charter customers centered around Maharashtra. The 
aircraft is maintained at the MRO facility of Taneja Aerospace 
and Aviation Limited at Hosur in Tamil Nadu.

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has one material subsidiary viz. TAAL Tech 
India Private Limited (TTIPL).

TTIPL is a niche Engineering and Technology solutions 
provider serving global corporations in their pursuit for faster 
innovation and technological excellence. TTIPL provides 
Product Engineering Services, R&D Services and IT Services 
customized to the specific needs of every individual customer.

The Financial Performance of TTIPL for the FY 2019-20 as 
compared to the corresponding previous year is given below:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Total Income 13,225.06 14,823.27
Expenditure 10,297.95 11,497.94
Profit Before Tax 2,927.11 3,325.32
Profit After Tax 2,384.00 2,268.55

The Government has still not announced the SEIS rates for 
2019-20 and therefore the Company could not take credit for 
the same in the accounts of 2019-20.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Indian aviation industry is expected to continue to grow 
at a robust pace over the next two decades. Increasing 
middle class population, favourable demography, along with 
the expected continuation of economic development and 
growth in household incomes support the positive long-term 
outlook. The growth will be further fuelled by increased aircraft 
penetration from current levels, and the expansion of aviation 
infrastructure.

Economic downturn, shortage of skilled manpower along 
with infrastructural challenges and high cost of operations 
associated with owning an aircraft add to the woes of the 
owners. There is also a threat from those low entry barrier 
competitors including international players who own mixed 
fleet of aircraft  which are economical for short haul flights.

The aircraft operated by the Company as part of it’s Charter 
operations, veered off the runway during landing, which has 
resulted in extensive damage to the aircraft. Hence, the 
Charter Operation of the Company remains suspended.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company is in the process of further strengthening of 
internal control systems.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance of the Company for FY 2019-20 as 
compared to the corresponding previous year is given below:

							        	  (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Gross Income 542.20 2,114.11
Expenditure 576.68 878.09
Profit / (Loss) before Interest, Tax, 
Depreciation and Amortization (570.22) 1,236.02

Profit / (Loss) after Interest, Tax, 
Depreciation and Extraordinary Items (570.22) 1,236.02

Earnings Per Share (18.30) 39.66
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/ 
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company maintained good industrial relations with it’s 
employees and staff. Human Resources remained a key 
focus area for your Company during the year under review. 
As on March 31, 2020, the Company had two employees.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as Amended,  
the Company is required to provide the details of significant 
changes (change of 25% or more as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year) in key sector specific 
financial ratios. The Company has identified the following 
ratios as key financial ratios:

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 Change
Debtors Turnover (times) 47.35 82.36 (35.01)
Inventory Turnover (times) NA NA NA
Interest Coverage Ratio (4.66)  150.55 (155.21)
Current Ratio 3.16 4.74 (1.59)
Debt Equity Ratio Nil 0.02 (0.02)
Operating Profit Margin (%) (46.91 %)  (15.22%)  (31.69%)
Net Profit Margin (%) (47%)  56% (103%)
Return on Net Worth (%) (16%) 71% (87%)

The Debtors Turnover has improved on account of timely 
realization.

The Current Ratio has improved due to investment in liquid 
funds.

The improvement in the debt equity is owing to better cash 
management and reduction in debts and increase in equity.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
describing the Company’s expectations or predictions are 
‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ 
materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors 
that could make a difference to the Company’s operations 
include demand-supply conditions, changes in Government 
regulations, tax regime, economic developments within the 
country and other factors such as litigations.
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Board's Report

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i) CIN L62200TN2014PLC096373
ii) Registration Date 01-07-2014
iii) Name of the Company TAAL Enterprises Limited 
iv) Category / Sub-Category Company limited by shares / Indian Non-Government Company
v) Address of the Registered office & contact details MMPDA Towers, 2nd Floor, Royapettah High Road, 

Chennai-600014 
Tel: 044- 4350 8393
e-mail: secretarial@taalent.co.in

vi) Whether listed company Yes
vii) Name, Address & Contact details of Registrar &

Transfer Agent, if any
Link Intime India Private Limited 
Block No. 202, 2nd Floor, Akshay Complex, 
Near Ganesh Temple,
Off Dhole Patil Road,  Pune-411001
Tel.: 020-26160084 Fax: 020-26163503
E-mail: pune@linkintime.co.in

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company:-

Sl.
No.

Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC Code of the
Product / service

% to total turnover
of the Company

1 Air Charter 51101 100
III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S.
No Name and address of the company CIN/ GLN

Holding/ 
Subsidiary/
Associate

% of
Shares 
Held*

Applicable 
Section

1 Vishkul Enterprises Private Limited 
Office No. 503, 5th Floor, Lunkad Sky Station 
Premises Co-Op Soc. Ltd, Plot No. 109, Viman 
Nagar, Pune - 411014

U74110PN1994PTC076383 Holding 50.74 2(46)

2 TAAL Tech India Private Limited  
GGR Tower, 2nd Floor, sy# 18/2b, 
Ambalipura village, Sarjapur Rd, Bellandur 
Gate, Bangalore-560103

U74900KA2012PTC067450 Subsidiary 89.47** 2(87)

3 First Airways Inc. 
160, Greentree Drive, Suite 101, City of 
Dover, Country of Kent, DE,129904, USA

NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

4 TAAL Technologies Inc., 
14405, Walters Road, Suite 601 Houston TX 
77014, USA

NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

5 TAAL Tech GmbH, 
Seestrasse 46, 8598 Bottighofen, Switzerland

NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

6 TAAL Tech Innovations GmbH, 
Rathausplatz 4 1010 Vienna, Austria

NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

	 * �Representing Aggregate % of shares held by the Company and it's subsidiaries included shares held by the Nominee of 
the Company

	 ** Increase in Shareholding due to reduction of share capital pursuant to buyback  of Equity Shares.
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IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
	 (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Sr.

No.
Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters & Promoter group
(1) Indian
a) Individual / HUF 4862 - 4862 0.16 4862 - 4862 0.16 -
b) Central Government - - - - - - - - -
c) State Government(s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corporate 1587588 - 1587588 50.94 1587588 - 1587588 50.94 -
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) (1):- 1592450 - 1592450 51.10 1592450 - 1592450 51.10 -
(2) Foreign - - - - - - - - -

a) NRIs-Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other-Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -
d) Individual / HUF - - - - - - - - -
e) Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholding of Promoter 1592450 - 1592450 51.10 1592450 - 1592450 51.10 -
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
b) Banks / FI - 37 37 - - 37 37 - -
c) Central Government - - - - - - - - -
d) State Government(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
i) Others (specify)

Foreign Banks - 12 12 - - 12 12 - -
Sub-total (B)(1):- - 49 49 - - 49 49 - -

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian 110032 12106 122138 3.92 95778 12106 107884 3.46 (0.46)
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital upto Rs. 1 
Lakhs

732451 96041 828492 26.59 722777 93018 815795 26.18 (0.41)

ii) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of 
Rs 1 Lakhs

399398 - 399398 12.82 415642 - 415642 13.34 0.52

c) Others (specify):-
(1) HUF 153189 - 153189 4.92 166432 - 166432 5.34 0.42
(2) Non-Residents 12111 55 12166 0.39 18035 55 18090 0.58 0.19
(3) NBFCs registered with RBI 8460 - 8460 0.27 - - - - (0.27)
Sub-total (B)(2):- 1415641 108202 1523843 48.90 1418664 105179 1523843 48.90 -
Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

1415641 108251 1523892 48.90 1418664 105228 1523892 48.90 -
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Sr.

No.
Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs
Public  -  - -  -  -  - -  - -
Sub-total (C)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) 3008091 108251 3116342 100.00 3011114 105228 3116342 100.00 -

II)	 Shareholding of Promoters & Promoter Group

Sl
No. Shareholder’s Name

Shareholding at
beginning of the year 2019

Shareholding at
the end of the year 2020 % change 

in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the
Company

%of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 

the
Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total
shares

1 Vishkul Enterprises Private Limited 1581297 50.74 0.00 1581297 50.74 0.00 0.00
2 Laurus Tradecon Private Limited  

(Formerly known as Lighto 
Technologies Private Limited)

5714 0.18 0.00 5714 0.18 0.00 0.00

3 Alka P Mehta 3625 0.12 0.00 3625 0.12 0.00 0.00
4 Salil Taneja 1200 0.04 0.00 1200 0.04 0.00 0.00
5 Indian Seamless Enterprises Limited 577 0.02 0.00 577 0.02 0.00 0.00
6 Baldevraj Topanram Taneja 37 0.00 0.00 37 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 1592450 51.10 0.00 1592450 51.10 0.00 0.00

IIII)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change): No change during the year

IV)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs/ ADRs):

Sl.
No. Name

Shareholding

Date
Increase/ 

Decrease in 
Shareholding

Reason

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year
No. of Shares At 

the Beginning 
(01.04.2019/ end of 

year 31.03.2020)

% total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 

the
Company

1 Mukul Mahavir Prasad Agrawal 114119 3.66 1-Apr-19 114119 3.66

114119 3.66 31-Mar-20

2 Naveen Bothra and Sons HUF 101000 3.24 1-Apr-19 101000 3.24

13-Mar-20 7200 Sale 93800 3.01

20-Mar-20 3800 Sale 90000 2.89

90000 2.89 31-Mar-20

3 Naveen Bothra 76800 2.46 1-Apr-19 76800 2.46

76800 2.46 31-Mar-20
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Sl.
No. Name

Shareholding

Date
Increase/ 

Decrease in 
Shareholding

Reason

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year
No. of Shares At 

the Beginning 
(01.04.2019/ end of 

year 31.03.2020)

% total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 

the
Company

4 Dheeraj Kumar Lohia 63892 2.05 1-Apr-19 63892 2.05
29-Jun-19 6426 Sale 57466 1.84
15-Nov-19 595 Buy 58061 1.86
20-Mar-20 1000 Buy 59061 1.90

59061 1.90 31-Mar-20
5 Lekhya Kantheti 30756 0.99 1-Apr-19 30756 0.99

30756 0.99 31-Mar-20
6 Prakash Chandra Modi 28450 0.91 1-Apr-19 28450 0.91

28450 0.91 31-Mar-20
7 Sahu Bhagwandas Kishorilal 

HUF
100 0.00 1-Apr-19 100 0.00

5-Apr-19 5000 Buy 5100 0.16
10-May-19 5000 Buy 10100 0.32
21-Jun-19 10000 Buy 20100 0.65
9-Aug-19 5000 Buy 25100 0.81

30-Sep-19 5035 Buy 30135 0.97
4-Oct-19 5035 Sale 25100 0.81

18-Oct-19 5517 Buy 30617 0.98
15-Nov-19 126 Buy 30743 0.99
22-Nov-19 3143 Sale 27600 0.89

6-Dec-19 424 Buy 28024 0.90
13-Dec-19 424 Sale 27600 0.89
10-Jan-20 248 Sale 27352 0.88
17-Jan-20 752 Sale 26600 0.85
7-Feb-20 904 Sale 25696 0.82

14-Feb-20 596 Sale 25100 0.81
25100 0.81 31-Mar-20

8 Arch Finance Limited 20500 0.66 1-Apr-19 20500 0.66
31-May-19 250 Buy 20750 0.67

7-Jun-19 250 Sale 20500 0.66
29-Jun-19 100 Buy 20600 0.66

5-Jul-19 100 Buy 20700 0.66
12-Jul-19 200 Sale 20500 0.66

31-Jan-20 1944 Buy 22444 0.72
7-Feb-20 1944 Sale 20500 0.66

13-Mar-20 300 Buy 20800 0.67
20-Mar-20 300 Sale 20500 0.66

20500 0.66 31-Mar-20
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Sl.
No. Name

Shareholding

Date
Increase/ 

Decrease in 
Shareholding

Reason

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 

the year
No. of Shares At 

the Beginning 
(01.04.2019/ end of 

year 31.03.2020)

% total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 

the
Company

9 Bhagwandas K Sahu 50000 1.60 1-Apr-19 50000 1.60

5-Apr-19 5000 Sale 45000 1.44

10-May-19 10000 Sale 35000 1.12

21-Jun-19 10000 Sale 25000 0.80

2-Aug-19 5000 Sale 20000 0.64

20000 0.64 31-Mar-20

10 Gokul Yeepu 20470 0.66 1-Apr-19 20470 0.66

17-May-19 603 Sale 19867 0.64

31-May-19 870 Sale 18997 0.61

21-Jun-19 460 Buy 19457 0.62

29-Jun-19 300 Sale 19157 0.61

5-Jul-19 767 Sale 18390 0.59

19-Jul-19 32 Sale 18358 0.59

2-Aug-19 161 Sale 18197 0.58

16-Aug-19 50 Sale 18147 0.58

13-Sep-19 140 Sale 18007 0.58

22-Nov-19 15000 Sale 3007 0.10

13-Dec-19 300 Sale 2707 0.09

10-Jan-20 271 Sale 2436 0.08

6-Mar-20 15000 Buy 17436 0.56

17436 0.56 31-Mar-20
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V)	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.
No. Name

Shareholding

Date
Increase/

Decrease in 
Shareholding

Reason

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year

No. of shares at 
the beginning 
(01.04.2019)/ 

end of the year 
31.03.2020)

% total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of 

the
Company

1 Mr. Salil Taneja - Executive Director 1200 0.04 01-Apr-2019 - - 1200 0.04
1200 0.04 31-Mar-2020 1200 0.04

2 Mr. R. Poornalingam - Independent 
Non-Executive Director - till 
27.09.2019

100 - 01-Apr-2019 - - 100 -
100 - 31-Mar-2020 100 -

3 Mr. Arvind Nanda – Independent 
Non-Executive Director

2 - 01-Apr-2019 - - 2 -
2 - 31-Mar-2020 - - 2 -

4 Mr. Shyam Powar – Independent 
Non-Executive Director - w.e.f. 
27.09.2019

- - 01-Apr-2019 - - - -
- - 31-Mar-2020 - -

5 Mrs. Rahael Shobhana Joseph–
Non-Executive Director

- - 01-Apr-2019 - - - -
- - 31-Mar-2020 - -

6 Mr. Vijay Purekar– Chief Financial 
Officer - till 19.09.2019

- - 01-Apr-2019 - - - -
- - 31-Mar-2020 - -

7. Ms. Shubhanshi Jain - Company 
Secretary - till 30.09.2019

- - 01-Apr-2019 - - - -
- - 31-Mar-2020 - -

8 Mr. Sourabh Sonawane- Company 
Secretary - w.e.f 13.02.2020

- - 01-Apr-2019 - - - -
- - 31-Mar-2020 - -

V.	 INDEBTEDNESS

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding deposits*

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at beginning of the 
financial year
i) Principal Amount 36.06  -  - 36.06
ii) Interest due but not paid  -  -  -  -

iii) Interest accrued but not due  -  -  -  -

Total (i+ii+iii) 36.06  -  - 36.06
Change in Indebtedness during 
financial year
Addition -  -  - -

Reduction 36.06  -  - 36.06

Net Change (36.06)  -  - (36.06)
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Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding deposits*

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year
i) Principal Amount -  -  - -

ii) Interest due but not paid  -  -  -  -

iii) Interest accrued but not due  -  -  -  -

Total (i+ii+iii) -  -  - -

VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/ or Manager: 	 (Rs. in Lakhs)

Sl. no. Particulars of Remuneration
Name of WTD

Total Amount
Mr. Salil Taneja

1 Gross salary 22.00 22.00
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961

- -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 - -

2 Stock Option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -
5 Others, please specify - -

Total (A) 22.00 22.00
Ceiling as per the Act* - -

�* Limit of remuneration shall be in terms of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and excludes contribution by the company 
to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund.

B.	 Remuneration to other directors:	 ( Rs. in Lakhs)
Sl.
no.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
Mr. Shyam 

Powar 
w.e.f 

27.09.2019

Mr. Arvind    
Nanda

Mr. R. 
Poornalingam 
till 27.09.2019

Mrs. Rahael 
Shobhana 

Joseph

Total 
Amount

1 Independent Directors
Fee for attending board / committee 
meetings

- 3.00 1.30  - 4.30

Commission  -  -  -  -  -
Others, please specify  -  -  -  -  -
Total (1) - 3.00 1.30  - 4.30

2 Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board / committee 
meetings

 -  -  -  2.70  2.70

Commission  -  -  -  -  -
Others, please specify  -  -  -  -  -
Total (2)  -  -  -  2.70  2.70
Total (B)=(1+2) - 3.00 1.30  2.70 7.00
Total Managerial Remuneration - 3.00 1.30  2.70  7.00
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA NA NA
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C.	 Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD			  (Rs. in Lakhs)

Sl.
No. Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Total
Sourabh Sonawane 
Company Secretary 

w.e.f 13.02.2020

Vijay Purekar 
Chief Financial 

Officer 
From 01.04.2019 

till 19.09.2019

Shubhanshi Jain 
Company Secretary 

From 23.04.2019 
till 30.09.2019

1 Gross salary 0.52 8.26 0.92 9.70

(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

- - -  -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961

- - -  -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

- - -  -

2 Stock Option - - -  -

3 Sweat Equity - - -  -

4 Commission - - -  -

5 Others, please specify

Total 0.52 8.26 0.92 9.70

VIII.	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NONE
The Company had made an application for condonation of delay for not filing of Form MGT-14 in respect of appointment of 
Ms. Shubhanshi Jain as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company passed by the Board of Directors 
of the company at it's meeting held on April 23, 2019. In view of the above, the Company is awaiting an order from the 
Central Government condoning the delay.
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Board’s Report

Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 for the Financial Year Ended on March 31, 2020.

I. 	 Conservation of energy:

	 i. 	� The steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy: The Company is a low energy consumer. 
Further being in rented building, consumption of 
power is limited to average 200 units per month.

	 ii. 	� The steps taken by the Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy: NA.

	 iii. 	� The capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment’s: Nil

II. 	 Technology absorption:

	 i. 	� The efforts made towards technology absorption: 
NA.

	 ii. 	� The benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution: Nil

	 iii. 	� In case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)- Nil

	 iv. 	� The expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development: Nil

III. 	 Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

	 a)	� Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to 
increase export, development of new export market 
for products and export plans.

		�  Company is involved in the business of chartering 
of aircraft to domestic customer.

	 b)	� During the year, foreign exchange earnings were 
Nil & foreign exchange outgo was Rs 145.92 Lakhs.

Annexure ‘C’ to the Board’s Report

Details pertaining to remuneration pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder:

1.	� The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and Company Secretary in the financial year 2019-20, ratio of 
remuneration of each Director to median remuneration of employees of the Company for the financial year 2019-20:

S. 
No.

Name of Directors / KMP and Designation % Increase in remuneration 
in FY 2019-20

Ratio of remuneration of Director to 
median remuneration of employees

1. Salil Taneja, Whole Time Director Nil 17.50 : 1
2. Sourabh Sonawane, Company Secretary* Nil NA

	 * w.e.f 13.02.2020

2.	 The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs.12.92 Lakhs  p.a.

3.	 During the financial year under review percentage, increase in the median remuneration of employees – N.A

4.	� Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the Managerial Personnel in the last Financial 
Year i.e. 2019-20 was NIL whereas the increase in the Managerial remuneration for the same Financial Year was also NIL.

	 There were 2 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2020.

5.	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members
TAAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED
2nd Floor, MMPDA Towers 184,
Royapettah High Road, Chennai 600014
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate governance practices by TAAL Enterprises Limited 
(hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted for the period from 1st April 
2019 to 31st March 2020, in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 
statutory compliances of the Company and expressing our 
opinion thereon. We have been engaged as Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company to conduct the Audit of the Company 
to examine the compliance of Companies Act and the laws 
specifically listed below.
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, it’s officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020, complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2020 
according to the provisions of the following list of laws and 
regulations mentioned hereunder, virtually due to COVID 19 
pandemic. The documents provided to us were treated as 
final for verification purposes as per the declaration given 
by the Management of the Company. The following are our 
observations on the same:
(i) 	� The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules 

made there under: The Company has satisfactorily 
complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules made there under and there are no 
discrepancies observed by us during the period under 
review except the Company has not filled the casual 
vacancy caused by the resignation of Chief Financial 
Officer w.e.f. September 19, 2019. 

	� The Company is in the process of filing Form MGT-14 for 
appointment of Company Secretary under Section 117 of 
the Act with the Registrar of Companies.

Annexure ‘D’ to the Board’s Report
(ii)	� The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 

(‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there under: The 
Company has complied with the provisions of The 
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’).

(iii) 	� The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed there under:

	� The Company is a listed public company the shares are 
in dematerialised form and the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the 
Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under.

(iv)	� The Company has satisfactorily complied with the 
provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 
1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings and 
there are no discrepancies observed by us during the 
period under review.

(v) 	� The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

	 (a)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;

	 (b) �	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

	 (c) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009, Not applicable;

	 (d)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 Not 
applicable;

	 (e) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 Not 
applicable; and

	 (f) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 
Not applicable;

	 (g) 	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client;

	 (h)	� The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 Not 
applicable;

		�  The Company is a listed Company and provisions 
of Regulations and Guidelines mentioned above 
and prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are duly 
complied by the Company.

		�  I further report that, having regard to the compliance 
system prevailing in the Company and on 
examination of the relevant documents and records 
in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied 
with the following laws applicable specifically to the 
Company:
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		  a.	 The Aircraft Act, 1934
			�   We have also examined compliance with 

the applicable clauses of the following:
			   (i)	� Secretarial Standards issued by The 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
The Company has duly complied with 
the Secretarial Standards for the period 
under review.

			   (ii) 	� The Listing Agreement entered into by the 
Company with BSE Limited, Mumbai in 
respect of Shares issued by the Company 
and Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

			�   During the period under review the Company 
has complied with the applicable provisions 
of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. which are mentioned above.

	 We further report that:-
	� There are adequate systems and processes in the 

company  commensurate with it’s size & operation to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws 
including general laws, labour laws, competition law and 
environmental laws.

	� The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 

constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors as 
required by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	� Adequate notice is given to all directors about the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions 
at Board Meetings were carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 
Directors.

	� We further report that during the audit period no major 
decisions, specific events / actions have occurred 
which has a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in 
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards, etc

FOR DVD & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Devendra Deshpande
Proprietor

	 FCS No. 6099
Place: Pune 	 CP No.6515
Date	: 28.07.2020	 UDIN: F006099B000515751

ANNEXURE A
To,
The Members
TAAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED
2nd Floor, MMPDA Towers 184,
Royapettah High Road, Chennai 600014

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. 	� Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. 	� We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

3. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. 	� Whereever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 

and happening of events etc.
5. 	� The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 

of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6. 	� The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR DVD & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

DEVENDRA DESHPANDE
Proprietor

Place: Pune 	 FCS No. 6099
Date: 28.07.2020 	 CP No. 6515
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of TAAL Enterprises Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of 
TAAL Enterprises Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement 
of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary 
of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory 
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2020, and Loss, Changes in Equity and it’s Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements Section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the 
Standalone Financial Statements:

a)	� Note 37 which states that the Company had carried on 
the demerged charter business and activities including 
banking transactions, statutory compliances and all other 
commercial activities relating to the demerged charter 
business for and on account of and in trust for TAAL 
Enterprises Limited until the time TAAL Enterprises 
Limited obtains the requisite statutory licenses for 
carrying on the demerged charter business. However, 
the accounting entries pertaining to the demerged 
charter business are accounted in the books of account 
of TAAL Enterprises Limited. The said matter is being 
reported as an Emphasis of Matter in our Statutory Audit 
Reports for the year ended March 31, 2017 onwards.

b)	� We draw attention to Note 42 to the financial statements 
which states that the management has performed 
an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the 
Company’s operations, financial performance and 
position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 
and has concluded that there is no material impact which 
is required to be recognised in the financial statements. 
Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to the 
financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit
Impairment of carrying value of Right of Use Asset

Refer Note 40 to the Standalone Financial Statements:

The Group / Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases (Ind AS 
116) in the current year.

Ind AS 116 introduces a new lease accounting model, wherein 
lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use (ROU) asset 
and a lease liability arising from a lease on the Balance Sheet. 
The lease liabilities are initially measured by discounting future 
lease payments during the lease term as per the contract / 
arrangement.

The Company operates a leased aircraft which has been 
recognised as a ROU pursuant to Ind AS 116. During the year, 
the leased aircraft (Right of Use asset) was damaged. The 
aircraft remains grounded since the incident on September 12, 
2019.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area included:

1.   �Reviewed compliance with Ind AS 36 - Impairment of 
Assets.

2.   �Obtained an understanding and verified the documentation 
and facts provided by Management.

3.   �Assessed the reasonableness of the Management’s 
assessment and conclusion with regard to comparison of 
the carrying value of the ROU with the recoverable amount 
to assess the impairment in the carrying amount.
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Considering the fact that the aircraft remains non-operational, 
the uncertainty around the timing of recommencement of the 
charter operations and the future receipt of insurance claim, 
the Group / company has assessed the carrying value of the 
Right of Use asset. Consequently written down the carrying 
value of the ROU by recognizing an impairment loss.

Due to the uncertainty and significant judgement involved in 
this matter, we have considered this as a key audit matter.

4.Obtained related management representations.

5. Verified disclosures in this regard

Information Other than the Standalone Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the Management 
report, Director’s report but does not include the Standalone 
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board 
of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 

has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone 
Financial Statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s 
responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements.

Other Matter

Due to the Covid-19 related lockdown we were not able to 
participate in the physical verification of inventory that was 
carried out by the management subsequent to the year end. 
Consequently, we have performed alternate procedures to the 
audit of existence of inventory as per the guidance provided 
in SA 501 – “Audit Evidence – Specific Considerations for 
Selected Items” and have obtained sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence to issue our unmodified opinion on these 
Standalone Financial Results.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of 
the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable.

2.	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 (a)	� We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.
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	 (b)	� In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books

	 (c)	� The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account.

	 (d)	� In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial 
Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 (e)	� On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

	 (f)	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

	 (g)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

		  i.	� The Company does not have any pending 
litigations which would impact its financial 
position.

		  ii.	� The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

		  iii.	� There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company

3.	� As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, 
in our opinion, according to information, explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to 
its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under 
Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Deepak Rao
Partner

Place: Bengaluru 	 Membership No. 113292
Date: July 30, 2020 	 UDIN: 20113292AAAAML7362
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TAAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Deepak Rao
Partner

Place: Bengaluru 	 Membership No. 113292
Date: July 30, 2020 	 UDIN: 20113292AAAAML7362
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i.	 (a)	� The company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets (Property, 
Plant and Equipment).

	 (b)	� Fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) 
have been physically verified by the management 
during the year and no material discrepancies 
were identified on such verification.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company does 
not own any immovable properties. Accordingly, 
of the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i)(c) of the 
order are not applicable to the Company.

ii.	 The Company is involved in the business of rendering 
services. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured 
or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not either 
directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its 
directors or to any other person in whom the director 
is interested, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made 
investments through more than two layers of investment 
companies in accordance with the provisions of Section 
186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in 
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

v.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there are no amounts 
outstanding which are in the nature of deposits as on 
March 31, 2020 and the Company has not accepted any 
deposits during the year.

vi.	 The provisions of Sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central 
Government of India has not specified the maintenance 
of cost records for any of the products of the Company. 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii.	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations 
given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, 
value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and 
other statutory dues have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities though 
there has been a slight delay in a few cases

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanation given 
to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and 
service tax, customs duty, cess and any other 
statutory dues which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute.

viii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
in repayment of dues to the financial institution, bank or 
debenture holders.

ix.	 The Company did not raise any money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

x.	 During the course of our audit, examination of the books 
and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, 
and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees.

xi.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has paid / provided 
for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in 

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF TAAL ENTERPRISE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
[Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report]
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compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the 
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

xv.	 According to the information and explanations given to 
us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with 

him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be 
registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Deepak Rao
Partner

Place: Bengaluru 	 Membership No. 113292
Date: July 30, 2020 	 UDIN: 20113292AAAAML7362
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements of TAAL Enterprises 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone 

Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial 

ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TAAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report]

controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the internal financial controls with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone 

Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial 
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 
control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
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of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial 
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With 
Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone 

Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone 

Financial Statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone 

Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal 
control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Deepak Rao
Partner

Place: Bengaluru 	 Membership No. 113292
Date: July 30, 2020 	 UDIN: 20113292AAAAML7362



26

TAAL Enterprises Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Notes  As at
 31 March 2020

 As at
 31 March 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5  8.07  11.21 
Financial assets

Investments 6  165.10  562.49 
Total Non-current assets  173.17  573.70 
Current assets
Financial assets

Investments 6  1,008.93  912.03 
Trade receivables 7  0.84  0.42 
Cash and cash equivalents 8  13.95  200.19 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 9  104.95  99.77 
Loans 10  123.32  140.88 
Other financial assets 11  49.43  53.93 

Current tax assets (net) 12  14.17  11.55 
Other current assets 13  59.48  52.55 
Total Current assets  1,375.07  1,471.33 

Total Assets  1,548.25  2,045.03 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14  311.63  311.63 
Other equity 15  842.29  1,412.51 
Total Equity  1,153.92  1,724.14 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 16  -    11.54 
Total Non-current liabilities  -    11.54 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17  -    36.06 
Trade payables 18  2.95  40.15 
Other financial liabilities 19  376.57  200.02 

Provisions 16  -    0.35 
Other current liabilities 20  14.81  32.77 
Total Current liabilities  394.33  309.35 

Total Liabilities  394.33  320.89 

Total Equity and Liabilities  1,548.25  2,045.03 

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes (2-46) are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020
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As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Notes  Year ended
 31 March 2020

 Year ended
 31 March 2019

 Income 
 Revenue from operations 21  425.30  782.40 
 Other income 22  116.90  1,331.70 
 Total Income  542.20  2,114.11 
 Expenses 
 Employee benefits expense 23  118.14  163.35 
 Operating Expenses 24  147.40  533.01 
 Finance costs 25  42.11  21.59 
 Depreciation and amortization expense 26  142.80  2.32 
 Other expenses 27  126.23  157.82 
 Total Expenses  576.68  878.09 

 Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (34.48)  1,236.02 
 Exceptional items- Impairment of Assets  - 
    a) Right Use of Asset  -refer note 41  (138.35)  - 
    b) Investment in Subsidiary-refer note 40  (397.39)  - 
 Exceptional items (535.74)  -   
 Profit before tax (570.22)  1,236.02 
 Income Tax expense: 
 Current tax  -    -   
 Total income tax expense  -    -   
 Profit / ( Loss) for the year (570.22)  1,236.02 
 Other comprehensive income 
 Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans  -   (2.78)
 Income tax effect  -    -   
 Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -   (2.78)

 Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (570.22)  1,233.23 
 Earnings per share 28
 Basic earnings / (loss) per share (INR) (18.30)  39.66 
 Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (INR) (18.30)  39.66 
 Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes (2-46) are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital

Particulars As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and 
fully paid
Opening  3,116,342  311.63  3,116,342  311.63 
Add: Shares issued during the year  -  -  -  - 
Closing  3,116,342  311.63  3,116,342  311.63 

(B) Other equity

Particulars  Capital Reserve Retained Earnings  Total
Balance as at 1 April 2018  1,085.59 (594.68)  490.91 
Profit for the year  -    1,236.02  1,236.02 
Interim Dividend (311.63) (311.63)
Other comprehensive income  -   (2.78) (2.78)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    921.60  921.60 

Balance as at March 31, 2019  1,085.59  326.92  1,412.51 

Particulars  Capital Reserve  Retained Earnings  Total
Balance as at 1 April 2019  1,085.59  326.92  1,412.51 
Profit for the year  -   (570.22) (570.22)
Interim Dividend  -    -    -   
Other comprehensive income  -    -    -   
Total comprehensive income for the year  -   (570.22) (570.22)

Balance as at March 31, 2020  1,085.59 (243.30)  842.29 

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes (2-46) are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
 Year ended  

31 March 2020
 Year ended  

31 March 2019
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax (570.22) 1,236.02 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 142.80 2.32 
Impairment of Right to use of asset 138.35  -   
Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary 397.39  -   
Dividend income  -   (1,275.00)
Interest income (24.28) (43.60)
Gain on changes in fair value of investments (mutual funds) (66.89) (12.03)
Interest expense 2.08 7.96 
Decrease in post-employment benefit obligation (11.54) (2.78)

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 7.68 (87.12)
Changes in working capital
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables (52.14) 108.44 
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables (4.10) 36.26 
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (48.56) 57.58 
Income tax paid - -
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) (48.56) 57.58 
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  -   (11.26)
Purchase of Investments (150.00) (900.00)
Investment in - ROU of lease arrangements (104.82)  -   
Proceeds from sales of investments 120.00  -   
Repayment of loans given 16.19 40.00 
Dividend income from Subsidiary  -   1,275.00 
Interest income 24.28 43.60 
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) (94.35) 447.34 
Cash flow from financing activities
Addition / (repayment) of short-term borrowings - net (36.06) (51.69)
Dividend paid  -   (311.63)
Interest expense (2.08) (7.96)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) (38.14) (371.28)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (181.07) 133.64 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Period / year 299.97 166.33 
Cash and cash equivalents for end of the Period / year 118.90 299.97 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks

On current accounts 13.93 200.16 
On unpaid dividend accounts 9.55 9.57 

Cash on hand 0.03 0.04 
Margin money or under lien deposits 91.26 86.05 
Money in fractional share entitlement account 4.15 4.16 
Total cash and bank balances at the end of the year 118.90 299.97 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020



30

TAAL Enterprises Limited

1	 General Information

	� TAAL Enterprises Limited ("TEL" or "the Company") is 
a public limited company incorporated in India under 
the Companies Act, 2013. TEL was earlier a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Taneja Aerospace and Aviation 
Limited (“TAAL”). However, pursuant to approval of the 
Scheme of Arrangement under Section 391 to 394 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 between TAAL & TEL, the Air 
Charter business of TAAL including investment in First 
Airways Inc, USA and Engineering Design Services 
business conducted through TAAL Tech India Private 
Ltd. has been demerged into TEL w.e.f. October 1, 
2014 and TEL has seized to be a subsidiary of TAAL. Its 
principal business activity is providing Aircraft Charter 
Services.

2	 Significant Accounting Policies

	� Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company 
are as under:

2.1	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

	 (a)	 Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

		�  These financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016.

	 (b)	 Basis of Measurement

		�  The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost convention on accrual basis, except 
for items that have been measured at fair value as 
required by relevant Ind AS.

		�  The Company presents assets and liabilities in 
the balance sheet based on current / non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when 
it is:

		  ► 	� Expected to be realised or intended to be 
sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

		  ► 	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

		  ► 	� Expected to be realised within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

		  ► 	� Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted 
from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

		  All other assets are classified as non-current.

		  A liability is current when:

		  ► 	� It is expected to be settled in normal 
operating cycle

		  ► 	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

		  ► 	� It is due to be settled within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

		  ► 	� There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.

		   All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

		�  The Company has ascertained its operating cycle 
as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

	 (c)	 Use of Estimates

		�  The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with Ind AS requires the Management 
to make estimate and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the 
Balance Sheet date, reported amount of revenue 
and expenses for the year and disclosures of 
contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet 
date. The estimates and assumptions used in the 
accompanying financial statements are based 
upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant 
facts and circumstances as at the date of the 
financial statements. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are 
recognized in the year in which the estimates are 
revised and in any future years affected. Refer 
note 3 for detailed discussion on estimates and 
judgments.

2.2	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	� Property, plant and equipment are stated at their original 
cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost 
of property, plant and equipment comprises of its 
purchase price including duties, taxes, freight and any 
other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to 
its working condition for its intended use. However, 
cost excludes Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax and GST, 
wherever credit of the duty or tax is availed of.

	� All indirect expenses incurred during acquisition / 
construction of property, plant and equipment including 
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interest cost on funds deployed for the property, plant 
and equipment are treated as incidental expenditure 
and are capitalised for the period until the asset is ready 
for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in 
the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized 
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the 
year in which they are incurred.

	� Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant 
and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date 
is classified as capital advances under other non-current 
assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such 
date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. 
Property, plant and equipment received from Taneja 
Aerospace and Aviation Limited pursuant to Demerger 
of its “Air Charter Business” are recorded at its book 
value as on the appointed date.

	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

	� The Company provides depreciation using Straight 
Line Method on Computer Hardware and on Written 
Down Value Method on Office Equipment and Furniture 
and Fixtures, based on the useful lives of assets as 
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	� Depreciation on addition to property, plant and 
equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date 
of acquisition. Depreciation on sale / deduction from 
property, plant and equipment is provided up to the 
date preceding the date of sale / deduction as the case 
may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined 
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These 
are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss under 
'Other income'.

	� Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2.3	 Investment in Subsidiary

	� When an entity prepares separate financial statements, 
it shall account for investments in subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates either:

	 (a) 	 at cost, or

	 (b) 	 in accordance with Ind AS 109.

	� The Company accounts for its investment in subsidiary 
at cost.

	� Investments acquired from Taneja Aerospace and 
Aviation Limited pursuant to Demerger of its “Air Charter 
Business” are recorded at its book value i.e cost as on 
the appointed date, less impairment, if any.

2.4	 Foreign Currency Transactions

	 (a)	 Functional and presentation currency

		�  Items included in the financial statements are 
measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates 
(‘the functional currency’). The financial statements 
are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

		�  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the 
reporting currency by applying the exchange rate 
between the reporting currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction.

	 (b)	 Transactions and balances

		�  On initial recognition, all foreign currency 
transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the 
date of the transaction. Gains / losses arising out 
of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between 
the transaction date and settlement date are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		�  All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are restated at the year end at the 
exchange rate prevailing at the year end and 
the exchange differences are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

		�  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial 
transactions.

2.5	 Fair Value Measurement

	� Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

	 ► 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

	 ► 	� In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability 
accessible to the Company.



32

TAAL Enterprises Limited

	� The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the 
use of unobservable inputs.

	� All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole:

	 ► 	� Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

	 ► 	� Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

	 ► 	� Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable

2.6	 Revenue Recognition

	� Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 
115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using 
the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to 
contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. 
In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition 
method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively 
adjusted. The following is a summary of new and / or 
revised significant accounting policies related to revenue 
recognition.

	� Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of 
promised goods and services to the customers in an 
amount that reflects the consideration we expect to 
receive in exchange for those goods and services and 
where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or 
collectability of consideration.

	 Revenue from Sale of Services

	� Charter income from aircraft given on charter is 
booked on the basis of contract with customers and 
on completion of actual flying hours of the aircraft. The 
revenue is recognised net of GST.

	� The impact of applying Ind AS 115 Revenue from 
contract with customers instead of the erstwhile Ind AS 
18 Revenue on the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended and as at March 31, 2019 is not 
significant.

	 Other Income

	� Interest income is recognised on basis of effective interest 

method as set out in Ind AS 109 - financial Instruments, 
and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability 
or collectability exists. Claims towards insurance claims 
are accounted in the year of settlement and / or in the 
year of acceptance of claim / certainty of realization as 
the case may be. Dividend income is recognised when 
the right to receive payment is established.

2.7	 Taxes

	� Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and 
deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net 
profit or loss for the year.

	 (a)	 Current income tax

		�  Current tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered or paid 
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year 
end date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable 
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.Income Taxes in connection with 
accounting for dividend distribution taxes will be 
recognized on timely basis.

	 (b) 	 Deferred tax

		�  Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the 
balance sheet approach, on temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial 
statements. Deferred income tax is also not 
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than 
a business combination that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor 
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end 
of the year and are expected to apply when the 
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the 
deferred income tax liability is settled.

		�  Deferred tax assets are recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences and unused 
tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable 
amounts will be available to utilize those temporary 
differences and losses.

		�  Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to 
interpretation. It establishes provisions where 
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appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to 
be paid to the tax authorities.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation authority.

		�  Current and deferred tax is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In 
this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
respectively.

2.8	 Leases

	 As a lessee

	� Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second 
Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases 
which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 
17 leases and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets 
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees 
and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet 
lease accounting model for lessees.

	� The Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied 
the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 
2019 using the modified retrospective method and has 
taken the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, 
on the date of initial application. Consequently, the 
Company recorded the lease liability at the present value 
of the lease payments discounted at the incremental 
borrowing rate and the right of use asset at its carrying 
amount as if the standard had been applied since the 
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at 
the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date 
of initial application. The Company has not restated 
comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect 
of initially applying this standard has been recognised 
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained 
earnings as on April 1, 2019.

	� The difference between the lease obligation recorded 
as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 and the value 
of the lease liability as of April 1, 2019 is primarily on 
account of inclusion of extension and termination 
options reasonably certain to be exercised, in measuring 
the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116 and 
discounting the lease liabilities to the present value 
under Ind AS 116.

2.9	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	� The Company assesses at each year end whether there 
is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or 
a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such 
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

	� An impairment loss is calculated as the difference 
between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable 
amount. Losses are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account. 
When the Company considers that there are no 
realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant 
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment 
loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can 
be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognised, then the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed through the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

	� The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating 
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).

2.10	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

	� Provisions are recognized when there is a present 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and there is 
a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 
the balance sheet date.

	� If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a 
finance cost.

	� Decommissioning costs (if any), are provided at the 
present value of expected costs to settle the obligation 
using estimated cash flows and are recognized as part 
of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are 
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discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks 
specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding 
of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. The 
estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed 
annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the 
estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are 
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

	� Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a 
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 
made.

2.11	 Borrowing Cost

	� Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary 
costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings and exchange differences arising from 
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are 
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

	� Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the assets, upto the date the asset is 
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

2.12	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	� Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise 
cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits 
net of bank overdraft with an original maturity of three 
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value.

	� For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and 
cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks 
and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft.

2.13	 Financial Instruments

	� A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

	 (a)	 Financial assets

		  (i)	 Initial recognition and measurement

			�   At initial recognition, financial asset is 
measured at its fair value plus, in the case 

of a financial asset not at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial 
assets carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

		  (ii)	 Subsequent measurement

			�   For purposes of subsequent measurement, 
financial assets are classified in following 
categories:

			   a) 	 at amortized cost; or

			   b) 	� at fair value through other 
comprehensive income; or

			   c) 	 at fair value through profit or loss.

			�   The classification depends on the entity’s 
business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows.

			�   Amortized cost: Assets that are held for 
collection of contractual cash flows where 
those cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest are measured at 
amortized cost. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in finance income 
using the effective interest rate method 
(EIR).

			�   Fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for 
collection of contractual cash flows and for 
selling the financial assets, where the assets’ 
cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest, are measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income 
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount 
are taken through OCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains or losses, 
interest revenue and foreign exchange 
gains and losses which are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. When 
the financial asset is derecognized, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognized in OCI is reclassified from 
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and 
recognized in other gains / (losses). Interest 
income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective 
interest rate method.

			�   Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that 
do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020



35

Annual Report 2019 - 20

FVOCI are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in other income.

		  (iii)	 Impairment of financial assets

			�   In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial 
Instruments, the Company applies expected 
credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on financial 
assets that are measured at amortized cost 
and FVOCI.

			�   For recognition of impairment loss on 
financial assets and risk exposure, the 
Company determines that whether there 
has been a significant increase in the credit 
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has 
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is  
used to provide for impairment loss.  
However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in 
subsequent years, credit quality of the 
instrument improves such that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, then the entity 
reverts to recognizing impairment loss 
allowance based on 12 month ECL.

			�   Life time ECLs are the expected credit 
losses resulting from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion 
of the lifetime ECL which results from default 
events that are possible within 12 months 
after the year end.

			�   ECL is the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Company 
in accordance with the contract and all 
the cash flows that the entity expects to 
receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at 
the original EIR. When estimating the cash 
flows, an entity is required to consider all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(including prepayment, extension etc.) over 
the expected life of the financial instrument. 
However, in rare cases when the expected 
life of the financial instrument cannot be 
estimated reliably, then the entity is required 
to use the remaining contractual term of the 
financial instrument.

			�   In general, it is presumed that credit risk 
has significantly increased since initial 
recognition if the payment is more than 30 

days past due.

			   Trade receivables

			�   An impairment analysis is performed at each 
reporting date on an individual basis for 
major clients. It is based on its historically 
observed default rates over the expected 
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted 
for forward-looking estimates. At every 
reporting date, the historical observed 
default rates are updated and changes in 
the forward-looking estimates are analysed. 
On that basis, the Company estimates the 
provision at the reporting date.

		  (iv)	 Derecognition of financial assets

			   A financial asset is derecognized only when

			   a)	� the rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial asset is transferred or

			   b) 	� retains the contractual rights to receive 
the cash flows of the financial asset, 
but assumes a contractual obligation 
to pay the cash flows to one or more 
recipients.

			�   Where the financial asset is transferred 
then in that case financial asset is 
derecognized only if substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset is transferred. Where the entity has 
not transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
the financial asset is not derecognized.

	 (b)	 Financial liabilities

		  (i)	 Initial recognition and measurement

			�   Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss and at amortized 
cost, as appropriate.

			�   All financial liabilities are recognized initially 
at fair value and, in the case of borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

		  (ii)	 Subsequent measurement

			�   The measurement of financial liabilities 
depends on their classification, as described 
below:

			�   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss
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			�   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss include financial liabilities held for 
trading and financial liabilities designated 
upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss.

			   Loans and borrowings

			�   After initial recognition, interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the EIR 
method. Gains and losses are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through 
the EIR amortization process. Amortized 
cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  (iii)	 Derecognition

			�   A financial liability is derecognized when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged 
or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from 
the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance 
costs.

	 (c)	 Offsetting financial instruments

		�  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and 
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally 
enforceable right must not be contingent on future 
events and must be enforceable in the normal 
course of business and in the event of default, 
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.

2.14	 Employee Benefits

	 (a)	 Short-term obligations

		�  Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 

wholly within 12 months after the end of the year 
in which the employees render the related service 
are recognized in respect of employees’ services 
up to the end of the year and are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

	 (b)	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

		  (i)	 Defined contribution plan

			�   The Company makes defined contribution 
to Provident Fund and Superannuation 
Fund, which are recognised as an expense 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on 
accrual basis. The Company has no further 
obligations under these plans beyond its 
monthly contributions.

		  (ii)	 Defined benefit plans

			�   The Company's liabilities under Payment of 
Gratuity Act and Long Term Compensated 
Absences are determined on the basis of 
actuarial valuation made at the end of each 
financial year using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, except for short term compensated 
absences, which are provided on actual 
basis. Actuarial losses / gains are recognized 
in the other comprehensive income in the 
year in which they arise. Obligations are 
measured at the present value of estimated 
future cash flows using a discounted rate that 
is determined by reference to market yields 
at the Balance Sheet date on Government 
Bonds where the currency and terms of the 
Government Bonds are consistent with the 
currency and estimated terms of the defined 
benefit obligation.

		  (iii)	 Leave encashment - Encashable

			�   Accumulated compensated absences, 
which are expected to be availed or 
encashed within 12 months from the 
end of the year are treated as short term 
employee benefits. The obligation towards 
the same is measured at the expected cost 
of accumulating compensated absences as 
the additional amount expected to be paid 
as a result of the unused entitlement as at 
the year end.

			�   Accumulated compensated absences, which 
are expected to be availed or encashed 
beyond 12 months from the end of the year 
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end are treated as other long term employee 
benefits. The Company's liability is 
actuarially determined (using the Projected 
Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. 
Actuarial losses / gains are recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss in the year in 
which they arise.

2.15	 Earnings Per Share

	� Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings 
considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per 
share is the net profit or loss for the year after deducting 
preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto 
for the year. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year and for all the years 
presented is adjusted for events, that have changed 
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a 
corresponding change in resources.

	� For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16	 Segment Reporting

	� Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent 
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker 
regularly monitors and reviews the operating result 
of the whole Company as one segment of viz. "Air 
Charter". Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating 
Segments”, the Company’s entire business falls under 
this one operational segment and hence the necessary 
information has already been disclosed in the Balance 
Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3	� Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and 
Assumptions

	� The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and 
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount 
of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

3.1	 Estimates and Assumptions

	� The key assumptions concerning the future and other 
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year end 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, are described 
below. The Company based its assumptions and 
estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and 
assumptions about future developments, however, may 
change due to market changes or circumstances arising 
that are beyond the control of the Company. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they 
occur.

	 (a)	 Defined benefits and other long term benefits

		�  The cost of the defined benefit plans such as 
gratuity and leave encashment are determined 
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may 
differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount 
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. 
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation 
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at 
each year end.

		�  The principal assumptions are the discount and 
salary growth rate. The discount rate is based 
upon the market yields available on government 
bonds at the accounting date with a term that 
matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate 
takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors on long term basis.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 Property, plant and equipment

 Gross block  Depreciation  Net block
As at  

1 April 
2019 

 Additions/ 
Adjustments 

As at 
31 March 

2020

 As at  
1 April 
2019

 For the 
year  Adjustments 

As at 
31 March 

2020

 As at 
31 March 

2020 

As at 
31 March 

2019 
Owned assets
Computer - Hardware  0.38  -    0.38  0.27  -    -    0.27  0.11  0.11 
Office Equipment  0.84  -    0.84  0.49  0.08  -    0.56  0.28  0.35 
Furniture and Fixtures  3.52  -    3.52  2.42  0.01  -    2.43  1.09  1.10 
Vehicles  11.26  -    11.26  1.61  3.06  4.66  6.59  9.65 
Total  16.00  -    16.00  4.79  3.14  -    7.93  8.07  11.21 

 Gross block  Depreciation  Net block
As at  
1 April 
2018 

 Additions/ 
Adjustments 

As at 
31 March 

2019 

As at  
1 April 
2018 

 For the year  Adjustments 
As at 

31 March 
2019

As at 
31 March 

2019 

As at 
31 March 

2018 
Owned assets
Computer - Hardware  0.38  -    0.38  0.25  0.02  -    0.27  0.11  0.13 
Office Equipment  0.84  -    0.84  0.30  0.19  -    0.49  0.35  0.54 
Furniture and Fixtures  3.52  -    3.52  1.93  0.50  -    2.42  1.10  1.60 
Vehicles  -    11.26  11.26  -    1.61  1.61  9.65  -   
Total  4.75  11.26  16.00  2.48  2.32  -    4.79  11.21  2.27 

 Gross block  Depreciation  Net block
As at  
1 April 
2019 

 Additions/ 
Adjustments 

As at 
31 March 

2020 

As at  
1 April 
2019 

Depreciation 
for the year  Impairment 

As at 
31 March 

2020 

As at 
31 March 

2020 

As at 
31 March 

2019 
Right of use assets  -    278.01  278.01  -    139.65  138.35  278.01  -    -   
Total  -    278.01  278.01  -    139.65  138.35  278.01  -    -   

	 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the leased aircraft (Right of Use asset) operated by the Holding Company as part 
of the charter business had veered off the runway during a landing, resulting in damage to the aircraft. this mishap has 
caused damage to the aircraft. The aircraft remains grounded since the incident on September 12, 2019. This incident was 
duly reported to the Bombay Stock Exchange and the Directorate General of Civil Aviation.

	 The Company had initiated the process of claim with the Insurance Company who is appraising the damage with the help 
of manufacturer representative. The Company is awaiting an updated from the Insurance Company in this regard.

	 During the year, considering the fact that the aircraft remains non-operational, and the uncertainty around the timing of 
recommencement of the charter operations and not withstanding the future receipt of insurance claim, the Group has 
assessed the carrying value of the Right of Use asset and consequently written down the carrying value of the ROU by 
recognizing an impairment loss of Rs 1,35,38,332/-as an exceptional charge during the year. The Group continues to carry 
the outstanding liability the lease obligations as per the terms of the lease agreement. This incident was duly reported to 
the Bombay Stock Exchange and the Directorate General of Civil Aviation. The Company has initiated the process of claim 
is in advanced stage with the Insurance Company.



39

Annual Report 2019 - 20

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 Financial Assets- Investments
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019
Investment in equity instruments of subsidiaries (fully paid-up)
Unquoted equity shares (Non-trade, stated at cost)
First Airways Inc, USA  477.49  477.49 
11,50,000 (31 March 2019: 11,50,000) Shares of USD 1/- each

Less; Impairment of Investment (397.39)  -   
Investment in First Airways Inc, USA after Impairment 80.10 477.49 
TAAL Tech India Private Limited  85.00  85.00 
8,50,000 (31 March 2019: 8,50,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
Pursuant to buyback agreement between subsidiary company and minority share 
holder, the % of share holding has increased from 85% to 89.4%
Investments at fair value through profit and loss (fully paid)
- Investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) (Refer footnote i)  1,008.93  912.03 
Total non-current financial assets - investments  1,174.03  1,474.53 

Current  1,008.93  912.03 
Non-current  165.10  562.49 

 1,174.03  1,474.53 
Aggregate book value of:
Quoted investments  1,008.93  912.03 
Unquoted investments  165.10  562.49 
Aggregate market value of:
Quoted investments  1,008.93  912.03 
Unquoted investments  165.10  562.49 

Footnotes:
i. Details of investments in Mutual Funds (Quoted) designated at FVTPL:

Particulars  Number of units  Amount
 As at

31 March 2020
 As at

31 March 2019
 As at

31 March 2020
 As at

31 March 2019
TATA Liquid Fund- Growth  32,213.67  30,974.77  1,008.93  912.03

7 Trade receivables
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Unsecured
Considered good  0.84  0.42 

 0.84  0.42 
Further classified as:

Receivable from others  0.84  0.42 
Total trade receivables  0.84  0.42 
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8 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Balances with banks
On current accounts  13.93  200.16 

Cash in hand  0.03  0.04 
Total cash and cash equivalents  13.95  200.19 

9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Margin money or under lein deposits- Maturity more than 3 months  91.26  86.05 
Money in fractional share entitlement account  4.15  4.16 
On unpaid dividend accounts  9.55  9.57 
Total bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent  104.95  99.77 

10 Current financial assets - loans
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits  9.51  10.88 
Loans recoverable in cash  113.81  130.00 
Total current financial assets - loans  123.32  140.88 

11 Current financial assets - others
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Advance recoverable in cash or kind  49.43  53.93 
Total current financial assets - others  49.43  53.93 

12 Current tax assets (net)
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Advance income tax [net of provision for tax INR Nil (31 March 31 2019: INR 
11,54,000)]

 14.17  11.55 

Total current tax assets (net)  14.17  11.55 

13 Other current assets
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Unsecured, considered good

Balances with government authorities  20.06  14.15 
Advance to suppliers  4.68  3.62 
Advance to staff  0.54  0.81 
Prepaid expenses  8.46  33.96 
Other Receivables  25.75  -   
Total other current assets  59.48  52.55 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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14 Equity share capital
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Authorised
50,00,000 (31 March 2019: 50,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 each  500  500 

 500  500 
Issued, subscribed and paid up
31,16,342 (31 March 2019: 31,16,342) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up  311.63  311.63 
Total equity share capital  311.63  311.63 

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

 Number of 
shares

 Amount  Number of 
shares

 Amount

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3,116,342  312 3,116,342  311.63 
Add: Equity Shares issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,116,342 312  3,116,342.00  311.63 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per 
share held. Dividend, if any declared is payable in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares 
bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 
Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts for consideration 
other than cash as per the Scheme of Demerger.

3,116,342 3,116,342

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder  31 March 2019  31 March 2018

 Number of 
shares

 % of holding 
in the class

 Number of 
shares

 % of holding 
in the class

Vishkul Enterprises Private Limited  1,581,297  50.74  1,581,297.00  50.74 
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership 
of shares.

(e) No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years or period elapsed from 
the date of incorporation whichever is earlier.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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15 Other equity
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

(a) Capital reserve
Opening balance  1,085.59  1,085.59 
Closing balance  1,085.59  1,085.59 

(b) Retained earnings
Opening balance  326.92 (594.68)
Net profit for the current year (570.22)  1,236.02 
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans  -   (2.78)
Interim Dividend (refer Note 37)  -   (311.63)
Closing balance (243.30)  326.92 
Total other equity  842.29  1,412.51 

16 Provisions
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Non current provisions
(a) Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (unfunded)  -    4.77 
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded)  -    6.77 

 -    11.54 
Current provisions
(b) Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (unfunded)  -    0.06 
Provision for leave encashment (unfunded)  -    0.29 

 -    0.35 
Total provisions  -    11.89 

17 Short-term borrowings
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks - working capital borrowing from banks  -    36.06 
Total short-term borrowings  -    36.06 

Working capital loan from bank is secured against the hypothecation of stocks and book debts on pari-passu basis 
and second charge on property, plant and equipment, all belonging to the demerged Company 'Taneja Aerospace and 
Aviation Limited'. The Company has close down working capital facilities with bank during the financial year 2019-20 out 
of own funds.

18 Trade payables
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises*  -    -   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 2.95  40.15 

Total trade payables  2.95  40.15 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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* The identification of micro, small and medium enterprise suppliers as defined under the provisions of "The Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" [MSMED Act] is based on confirmation received from 
suppliers. The Company has accrued INR Nil (March 31, 2019: INR 0.12 lakhs) towards interest payable to the 
vendors under the MSMED Act.

i. The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid as at the year end ,Interest amount due and remaining unpaid 
as at the year end

ii. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during 
each accounting year

iii. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

iv. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as the year end in respect of principal amount settled during 
the year

v. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

19 Other current financial liabilities
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Employee payables  9.51  9.59 
Other payables  23.60  180.85 
Lease liability  333.91  -   
Unpaid dividend  9.55  9.57 
Total other current financial liabilities  376.57  200.02 

20 Other current liabilities
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Statutory due payable  0.66  11.61 
Advance from customers  14.15  21.16 
Total other current liabilities  14.81  32.77 

21 Revenue from operations
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Sale of services
 Charter income  425.30  782.40 
Total Revenue from operations  425.30  782.40 

22 Other income
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Dividend Income  -   1,275
Interest income  24.28  43.60 
Gain on changes in fair value of investments (mutual funds)  66.89  12.03 
Miscellaneous income  1.20  1.06 
Liabilities / Provisions no longer required written  24.53  0.02 
Total Other income  116.90  1,331.70 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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23 Employee benefits expense
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances  115.25  160.60 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  1.30  1.32 
Gratuity expenses  -    0.41 
Staff welfare expenses  1.60  1.02 
Total Employee benefits expense  118.14  163.35 

24 Operating Expenses
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Aircraft fuel charges  68.78  134.36 
Rent - flight parking & equipment  16.59  38.53 
Aircraft lease rent  1.05  261.98 
Ground Handling Charges-Expenses  33.17  58.06 
Consumption of stores and spare parts  27.81  40.08 
Total Operating Expenses  147.40  533.01 

25 Finance costs
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Interest on working capital  2.08  7.96 
Interest on delayed payment of taxes  2.98  3.52 
Interest on Leases  22.92  -   
Other finance cost  14.12  10.10 
Total Finance costs  42.11  21.59 

26 Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

On property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5)  3.14  2.32 
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset  139.65  -   
Total Depreciation and amortization expense  142.80  2.32 

27 Other expenses
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Aircraft repairs and maintenance  10.87  3.13 
Chartered & Crew Accommadation and travel Expenses  12.60  20.10 
Advertisement  1.33  1.24 
Rent - refer note 42  -    6.00 
Insurance  12.43  18.70 
Rates and taxes  17.51  10.96 
Registeration & renewal  7.85  14.29 
Travelling expenses  5.52  9.33 
Auditor's remuneration  6.02  5.59 
Printing & stationery  1.65  2.74 
Communication expenses  1.06  3.10 
Legal and professional charges  11.31  25.66 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 
Loss on foreign exchange transactions (net)  9.75  9.36 
Sitting fee  7.00  8.20 
Debtor written off  0.00  0.09 
Training expenses  18.17  16.32 
Miscellaneous expenses  3.15  2.99 
Total Other expenses  126.23  157.82 

^ Aircraft lease rent
The aircraft has been availed on operating lease from an overseas lease finance company for a period of 153 months 
(Refer note 40)
The payments under lease for the future period as at 31 March 2020 are:

Particulars  Amount in
US$

 Equivalent in
INR

Within one year  1.50  112.99 
After one year but not more than five years  -    -   
More than five years  -    -   
Total  1.50  112.99 

The payments under lease for the future period as at 31 March 2019 are:
Particulars  Amount in

US$
 Equivalent in

INR
Within one year  3.00  207.51 
After one year but not more than five years  1.50  103.76 
More than five years  -    -   
Total  4.50  311.27 

# The following is the break-up of Auditor's remuneration (exclusive of service tax / GST)
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

As auditor:
Statutory audit  2.00  2.00 
In other capacity:  -    -   
Limited review  3.00  3.00 
GST Audit fee  0.50  -   
Reimbursement of expenses  0.52  0.59 
Total  6.02  5.59 

28 Earnings / loss per share
Basic earnings / (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to equity 
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to equity 
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number 
of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity holders (570.22)  1,236.02 
Less: preference dividend after-tax  -    -   
Loss attributable to equity holders after preference dividend (570.22)  1,236.02 
Add: Interest on convertible preference shares  -    -   
Profit attributable to equity holders (570.22)  1,236.02 
Weighted average number of equity shares 3,116,342 3,116,342
Basic earnings / (loss) per share (INR) (18.30)  39.66 
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share (INR) (18.30)  39.66 

	 * The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share 
transactions during the year.

	 The Company is having following potential equity shares:
	 (a)	� Shares allotted to the ABC Stock Option Plan Trust for issuance to employees in pursuance of the Employee Stock 

Option Plan.
	 (b)	 Convertible preference shares
	 Since conversion of above mentioned potential equity shares (Shares allotted to ESOP trust and Convertible preference 

shares) would decrease loss per share from continuing ordinary activities, these are anti-dilutive in nature and thus the 
effects of anti-dilutive potential equity shares are ignored in calculating diluted earning per share.

29 Employee benefits
The Company has not covered under Payment of Gratuity Act 1972

30 There are no Contingent Liabilities, Capital and Other Commitments as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

31 Related party disclosures: 31 March 2020

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified and certified by the Company:
Parent Company
Vishkul Enterprises Private Limited (Effective from: August 14, 2017)
Subsidiary Companies
TAAL Tech India Private Limited
First Airways Inc, USA
TAAL Technologies Inc, USA (Subsidiary of Taal Tech India Private Limited)
TAAL Tech GmbH, Switzerland (Subsidiary of Taal Tech India Private Limited)
TAAL Tech Innovations GmbH, Austria (Subsidiary of Taal Tech India Private Limited)
Entities under common control:
ISMT Limited
Laurus Tradecon Private Limited (erstwhile known as Lighto Technologies Private Limited)
TAAL Enterprises Limited
First Airways Inc.
Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited
Katra Auto Engineering Private Limited
Indian Seamless Enterprises Ltd.
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Salil Taneja (Whole Time Director, w.e.f October 01, 2018)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Non-Whole Time Director
Mr. R Poornalingam (w.e.f. April 18, 2017)
Mr. Arvind Nanda (w.e.f. October 11, 2018)
Mrs. Rahael Shobhana Joseph (upto April 22, 2017 and reappointed from November 16, 2017)

(B) Transactions / balances with related parties:
Particulars Subsidiary 

Companies
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Non- Whole 
Time 

director

Entities under 
common 
control

Investments  562.49  -    -    -   
 562.49  (-)  (-)  (-) 

Inter Corporate Deposit Given during the year  -    -    -    -   
 (-)  (-)  (-)  -150.00 

Inter Corporate Deposit repaid during the year  -    -    -    -   
 (-)  (-)  (-)  -150.00 

Reimbursement of Expenses during the year  -    -    -    -   
 45.70  (-)  (-)  (-) 

Sitting fees  -    (-)  7.00  -   
 (-)  -8.20  (-) 

Dividend Income  -    -    -    -   
 1,275.00  (-)  (-)  (-) 

Interest Income  -    -    -    -   
 (-)  (-)  (-)  -16.25 

Rent Paid  -    -    -    4.50 
 -  -  -    -6.00 

Managerial Remuneration #  -    22.00  -    -   
 (-)  -60.00  (-)  (-) 

Balance Payable as at the year end  -    -    -    -   
 -    (-)  (-)  -25.88 

Balance Receivable as at the year end  49.43  -    -    -   
 53.92  (-)  (-)  -   

(Figures in brackets relate to previous year)
Note: No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written off or written back during the year.
# Excludes contribution to gratuity fund and provision for leave encashment as separate figures are not ascertainable 
for the managerial personnel. Further, the Company has not paid any commission to the managerial personnel.

32 Segment reporting
The Company's operations predominantly relate to providing air charter services. The Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(CODM) reviews the operations of the Company as one operating segment. Hence no separate segment information has 
been furnished herewith.
"The customers whose revenue is more than 10% of companies total revenue are: 
Customer 1 : INR 99.00 Lakhs (31 March 2019: INR 130.19 Lakhs)
Customer 2 : INR 59.71 Lakhs (31 March 2019: INR 96.47 Lakhs)
Customer 3 : INR 42.00 Lakhs (31 March 2019: INR 79.41 Lakhs)"

33 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
The fair value of other current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short-term 
borrowings and other financial liabilities approximate the carrying amounts because of the short term nature of these 
financial instruments.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired include cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, term deposits 
and other financial assets

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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34 Fair value hierarchy
The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
• Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
• �Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
  (i.e. derived from prices).
• Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
 31 March 2020  31 March 2019 

Level 1 (Quoted price in active markets)
Investments in mutual funds at fair value through profit and loss  1,008.93  912.03 
Level 2 Nil Nil
Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Trade receivables  0.84  0.42 
Loans  123.32  140.88 
Cash and cash equivalents  13.95  200.19 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent  104.95  99.77 
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings  -    36.06 
Trade payables  2.95  40.15 
Other current financial liabilities  376.57  200.02 
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, other payables and short-term 
borrowings are considered to be the same as their fair values.

35  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to various financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Company's risk management is coordinated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing long term and 
short term cash flows. The Company does not engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

 A) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, 
such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings. The 
Company is also exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates 
relates primarily to short-term borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate 
risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion 
of loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected 
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

 Increase /decrease
in basis points

 Effect on profit
before tax

31 March 2020
INR  +0.45%  -   

INR  -0.45%  -   

31 March 2019
INR  +0.45% (0.16)

INR  -0.45% 0.16 

(ii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign 
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated 
in a different currency from the Company’s functional currency).

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar exchange 
rate (Net balance - receivable) (or any other material currency), with all other variables held constant, of the 
Company’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). The Company’s 
exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Change in USD rate Effect on profit
before tax

31 March 2020
INR +2.50% (2.82)

INR -2.50% 2.82 

31 March 2019
INR +2.50% (4.00)

INR -2.50% 4.00 

(B) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Company’s receivables from deposits, loans 
and advances and other statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cash held with banks and 
financial institutions. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The 
objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the 
credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and 
institutions and retaining sufficient balances in bank accounts required to meet a month’s operational costs. The 
Management reviews the bank accounts on regular basis and fund drawdowns are planned to ensure that there is 
minimal surplus cash in bank accounts. The Company does a proper financial and credibility check on the entities to 
whom such loans and advances and security deposits are given. The Company does not foresee any credit risks on 
deposits with regulatory authorities.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2019 and 31 
March 2018 is the carrying amounts as mentioned in Notes 6 to 11.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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 (C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The 
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet 
its liabilities when due.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities:

Less than  
1 year

1 to 5 years  More than 
5 years

 Total

31 March 2020

Short-term borrowings  -    -  -  -   

Trade payables  2.95  -  -  2.95 

Other financial liabilities  376.57  -  -  376.57 

 379.52  -  -  379.52 

31 March 2019

Short-term borrowings  36.06  -  -  36.06 

Trade payables  40.15  -  -  40.15 

Other financial liabilities  200.02  -  -  200.02 

 276.23  -  -  276.23 

36 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to 
maximize the shareholder value and to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company monitors gearing ratio i.e. total debt in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and debt. Total 
debt comprises of current borrowing which represents loan from bank. The Company manages the capital structure and 
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Total equity (i)  1,153.92  1,724.14 

Total debt (ii)  -    36.06 

Overall financing (iii) = (i) + (ii)  1,153.92  1,760.21 

Gearing ratio (ii) / (iii)  -    0.02 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 
2019 and 31 March 2018. 

Dividends 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(i) Equity Shares

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of INR Nil (31 March 2019 
- INR 10) per fully paid share

 -    311.63 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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37	 In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement under Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Scheme”) between 
Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited (TAAL) and TAAL Enterprises Limited (“the Company”), TAAL has demerged its 
Air Charter Business including investment in First Airways Inc., USA and Engineering Design Services Business conducted 
through TAAL Tech India Private Limited into the Company. Pursuant to the Scheme as sanctioned by the Hon’ble High 
Court of Madras vide order dated June 22, 2015, received on July 23, 2015, the Air Charter Business of TAAL including 
investment in First Airways Inc., USA and Engineering Design Services Business conducted through TAAL Tech India 
Private Limited has been demerged into the Company on a going concern basis with effect from October 1, 2014 being the 
appointed date. The certified copy of the said order of the Hon’ble High Court of Madras has been filed with the Registrar 
of Companies, Chennai on August 21, 2015 and as such the Scheme has become effective from that date.

	 As per Clause 9.2 of the Scheme of Arrangement as approved / sanctioned by the Hon’ble Madras High Court, Taneja 
Aerospace and Aviation Limited (TAAL) will carry on the business and activities relating to the demerged charter business 
for and on account of and in trust for TAAL Enterprises Limited (TEL) until the time TEL obtains the requisite statutory 
licences required for carrying on the demerged charter business. The said licences are yet to be obtained and accordingly 
the demerged charter business has continued to be operated by TAAL in trust for and on behalf of TEL including banking 
transactions, statutory compliances and all other commercial activities. Accordingly, the accounting entries pertaining to the 
demerged charter business are accounted in the books of account of TEL.

38	 Deferred tax calculations result into deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2020 as well as at March 31, 2019. However, as a 
matter of prudence, the Company has not recognized deferred tax assets as it is not probable that the Company will have 
future taxable profits.

39	 The Company accounts for the investment in subsidiaries at cost and tests for any impairment in the value of investment on 
an annual basis in accordance with Para 9 of IND AS 36 on Impairment of Asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, the 
management arrived at the net recoverable amount  plus net operating cash flows of subsidiary less the cost to incurred.

40	 The Company operates a chartered plane obtained under a lease agreement dated December 11, 2007 which is the sole 
aircraft being operated by the Company as a part of its business operations. As per the lease agreement with the lessor, 
the lease was for a period of 120 months which expired on December 11, 2017. During the year 2017-18, the Company and 
Lessor agreed for an extension of the lease for a period of one year from December 12, 2017 to December 11, 2018. During 
the year 2018-19, the Company has entered into an amended lease agreement dated September 21, 2018 for the aircraft 
taken on lease from Cessna Finance Corporation extending the lease up to September 2020 for carrying on the business 
and activities related to the demerged charter business. Further, as per the purchase option agreement entered between 
the Company, Lessor and First Airways Inc. (Wholly owned subsidiary), First Airways Inc. has an option to purchase the 
aircraft at the end of lease period. 						    

	 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the leased aircraft (Right of Use asset) operated by the Holding Company as part of 
the charter business had veered off the runway during a landing, resulting in damage to the aircraft. this mishap has caused 
damage to the aircraft. The aircraft remains grounded since the incident on September 12, 2019.Pursuant to the above, the 
ROU has been fully impaired and recorded as an exceptional item. The Company had initiated the process of claim with the 
Insurance Company.

41	 Effective April 1, 2019 the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases”, applied to all the lease contracts existing on April 
1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method, on the date of initial application. Accordingly, comparatives for the year 
prior periods have not been retrospectively adjusted. The adoption of Ind AS 116 has resulted in recognition of right-of-
use assets of INR 278.86 lakhs and lease liabilities of INR 278.86 lakhs on the transition date. In the financial results for 
the quarter ended June 30, 2019 onwards, the nature of expense for leasing arrangements has changed from aircraft 
lease rent and other rent expenses in previous periods to amortization on the right-of-use assets and finance cost on the 
corresponding lease liabilities

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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42	 The management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations, financial performance 
and position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 and has concluded that there is no significant impact which is 
required to be recognized in the financial statements. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes 
to future economic conditions.

43	 In the opinion of the Board, Current Assets and Loans and Advances are of the value stated if realised in the ordinary course 
of business. Further, provision for all the known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of amount considered reasonably 
necessary.

44	 Pursuant to the leasing arrangement for the aircraft, the Company is required to maintain the aircraft and undertake repairs 
for any damages, considering the assessment of damage is not completed and also the insurance claim process is ongoing, 
the contingent liability towards any repair costs to be borne by the Company are currently unascertainable. 

45	 The Company is in the process of appointing a suitable candidate as CFO on account of the vacancy caused by the 
resignation of the earlier incumbent.

46	 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified to confirm presentation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule III 
of the Act.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of TAAL Enterprises Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements of TAAL Enterprises Limited (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the 
Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities, which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2020, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, and based on consideration 
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements 
and on the other financial information of subsidiaries, the 
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards / Accounting 
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended / Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
their consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates 
and jointly controlled entities as at March 31, 2020, of 
Consolidated Profit, Consolidated Changes In Equity and it’s 
Consolidated Cash Flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the 
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Group, its associate and jointly 
controlled entities in accordance with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI”), and the 
relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements:

a)	 Note 44 which states that the Company during the 
current quarter due to non-availability of the requisite 
statutory licenses required for carrying on the demerged 
charter business, the demerged charter business has 
continued to be operated by Taneja Aerospace and 
Aviation Limited in trust for and on behalf of the Company 
including banking transactions, statutory compliances 
and all other commercial activities. However, the 
accounting entries pertaining to the demerged charter 
business are accounted in the books of account of the 
Company. The said matter was stated as an Emphasis 
of Matter in our Statutory Audit Reports for the year 
ended on March 31, 2016 onwards and Limited Review 
Reports for the quarter ended on or after June 30, 2016 
onwards.

b)	 Note 53 to the financial statements which states that the 
management has made an assessment of the impact 
of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations, financial 
performance and position as at and for the year ended 
March 31, 2020 and has concluded that there is no 
significant impact which is required to be recognized 
in the financial statements. The group will continue to 
closely monitor any material changes to future economic 
conditions.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matter(s).

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit
Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosures of revenues and other related balances as per 
Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
Refer the disclosures related to revenue recognition in 
Note 27 to the accompanying Financial Statements.
The recongition of revenue involves certain key 
judgments relating to identification of distinct performance 
obligations, determination of transaction price of the 
identified performance obligations, the appropriateness 
of the basis used to measure revenue recognised over a 
period. Additionally, revenue accounting standard contains 
additional qualitative disclosures.
Further, recognition of revenues in respect of fixed price 
contracts involves critical estimates of percentage of 
completion of contract towards satisfaction of performance 
obligations.
Due to the significance of the judgment and estimate 
involved by the Management, we have considered this as 
a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area included:
1. Evaluated the Company’s process to identify the impact of 

adoption of the new revenue accounting standard.
2. Performed the following procedures on test check basis for the 

samples selected:
• 	 Reviewed, analysed and identified the distinct performance 

obligations in these contracts.
• 	 Compared these performance obligations with that 

identified and recorded by the Company.
• 	 Considered the terms of the contracts to verify the 

transaction price used to compute revenue.
• 	 In respect of fixed price contracts, verified progress towards 

satisfaction of performance obligation used to compute 
recorded revenue based on the percentage of completion 
method using the technical estimates of management of 
stage of work completion.

•	 Verified revenues disaggregated by type and service 
offerings with the performance obligations specified in the 
underlying contracts.

• 	 Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of 
revenues disclosed by type and service offerings.

• 	 Performed procedures relating to cut off for period end.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Management report, Chairman’s 
statement, Director’s report etc. but does not include the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. The Management report, Chairman’s statement, 
Director’s report etc. is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other 
information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Act 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance and Consolidated 
Cash Flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly 
controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities 
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
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to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the 
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its 
associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities 
are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process 
of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s 
responsibilities for Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Other Matters

a.	 We did not audit the financial statements of two 
subsidiaries, and whose financial statements reflect 
total assets of Rs. 131.74 Lakhs (after elimination 
of intra- group balance Rs. 849.02 Lakhs ) as at 31st 
March, 2020, total revenues of Rs 0 (after elimination of 
intra- group balance Rs. 3,066.86 Lakhs) and net cash 
flows amounting to Rs. 93.82/- for the year ended on 
that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.. These financial statements have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion 
on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of 
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it 

relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on 
the reports of the other auditors.

	 Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside 
India whose financial statements and other financial 
information have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in their 
respective countries and which have been audited 
by other auditors under generally accepted auditing 
standards applicable in their respective countries. 
The Holding Company’s management has converted 
the financial statements of such subsidiaries located 
outside India from accounting principles generally 
accepted in their respective countries to accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. We have audited 
these conversion adjustments made by the Holding 
Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it 
relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries 
located outside India is based on the report of other 
auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by 
the management of the Holding Company and audited 
by us.

b.	 We did not audit the financial statements of one 
subsidiaries, and whose financial statements reflect 
total assets of Rs. 80.10 Lakhs/- as at 31st March, 
2020, total revenues of Rs. 2.54 Lakhs /- and net cash 
flows amounting to Rs. (194.84) Lakhs /-  for the year 
ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. These financial statements have 
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on 
the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of 
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it 
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on 
the reports of the other auditors.

c.	 Due to the COVID-19 related lockdown we were not able 
to participate in the physical verification of inventory that 
was carried out by the management subsequent to the 
year end. Consequently, we have performed alternate 
procedures to the audit of existence of inventory as per 
the guidance provided in SA 501 – “Audit Evidence – 
Specific Considerations for Selected Items” and have 
obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to issue 
our unmodified opinion on these Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and 
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 
the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the 
Management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. 	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to 
the extent applicable, that:

	 a.	� We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c.	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the relevant books of account maintained for 
the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

e.	 On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company 
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its 
subsidiaries companies, incorporated in India, 
none of the directors of the Group companies, 
its associate companies and jointly controlled 
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as 
on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.	 With respect to the adequacy of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting of the Group and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us:

	 i.	� The Group does not have any pending 
litigations which would impact its financial 
position.

		  ii.	� The Group did not have any material 
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts.

		  iii. 	� There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company, and its subsidiaries companies, 
incorporated in India.

As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in 
our opinion, according to information, explanations given to 
us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company, to its 
directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 
197 of the Act and the rules thereunder except in case of one 
subsidiaries, as the provisions of the aforesaid section is not 
applicable to private company/companies.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Deepak Rao
Partner

Place: Bengaluru 	 Membership No. 113292
Date: July 30, 2020 	 UDIN: 20113292AAAAMM6740
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group 
and its associates and jointly controlled entities to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group and its 
associates and jointly controlled entities to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial 
Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF TAAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group and its associates and 
jointly controlled entities to express an opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audit of the financial statements of such entities included 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we 
are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
which have been audited by other auditors, such other 
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audits carried out by them. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of 
the Holding Company and such other entities included in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Deepak Rao
Partner

Place: Bengaluru 	 Membership No. 113292
Date: July 30, 2020 	 UDIN: 20113292AAAAMM6740
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 
March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements 
of TAAL Enterprises Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, 
its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and jointly 
controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in 
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the 
respective companies considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, 
which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF TAAL ENTERPRISES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ 
Report of even date to the Members of TAAL Enterprises Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended  
March 31, 2020

Statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and 
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 
their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding company, 
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated 
in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated 
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With 
Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in 
India, have, in all material respects, internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 

31, 2020, based on the internal control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the 
respective companies considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the 
ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements insofar as it relates to one subsidiary companies, 
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies 
incorporated in India.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Deepak Rao
Partner

Place: Bengaluru 	 Membership No. 113292
Date: July 30, 2020 	 UDIN: 20113292AAAAMM6740
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Notes  As at
 31 March 2020

 As at
 31 March 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5  62.39  94.84 
Intangible assets 6.1  10.92  20.19 
Right of use assets 6.2  448.42  -   
Goodwill  -    456.27 
Financial assets

Loans 8  180.82  158.94 
Deferred tax asset (net) 32  419.01  429.52 
Other non-current assets 9  -    91.74 
Total non-current assets  1,121.56  1,251.51 
Current assets
Financial assets

Investments 7  2,531.41  996.13 
Trade receivables 10  2,285.97  2,585.83 
Cash and cash equivalents 11  1,075.64  1,227.41 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 12  372.87  199.77 
Loans 13  123.32  140.88 
Other financial assets 14  814.17  656.55 

Current tax assets (net) 15  14.17  11.55 
Other current assets 16  1,260.24  1,255.84 
Total current assets  8,477.79  7,073.98 

Total assets  9,599.35  8,325.49 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17  311.63  311.63 
Other equity 18  4,741.17  4,571.13 
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of parent company  5,052.80  4,882.76 
Non-controlling interest  -    559.58 
Total Equity  5,052.80  5,442.34 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 19(a)  27.70  18.04 
Other non-current liabilities 20  1,473.25  72.37 
Total non-current liabilities  1,500.94  90.41 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 21  -    36.06 
Trade payables 22  401.54  1,012.84 
Other financial liabilities 23  2,190.67  1,073.51 

Provisions 19(b)  -    0.35 
Other current liabilities 24  140.69  369.91 
Current tax liabilities (net) 25  312.71  300.07 
Total Current liabilities  3,045.60  2,792.74 

Total Liabilities  4,546.54  2,883.15 

Total equity and Liabilities  9,599.35  8,325.49 

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes (2-56) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020
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As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes  Year ended
 31 March 2020

 Year ended
 31 March 2019

 Income 
 Revenue from operations 26  12,990.94  14,979.52 
 Other income 27  778.86  745.59 
 Total Income  13,769.80  15,725.11 
 Expenses 
 Employee benefits expense 28  7,590.16  8,076.37 
 Finance costs 29  176.70  183.94 
 Depreciation and amortization expense 30  583.25  130.91 
 Other expenses 31  2,263.98  3,804.65 
 Total Expenses  10,614.09  12,195.87 
 Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items and tax  3,155.72  3,529.24 
 Exceptional items- Impairment of Assets  -   
    a) Right Use of Asset (138.35) -
    b) Investment in Subsidiary (456.27) -
Exceptional Items - Impairment of Assets (594.63)  -   
Profit before tax  2,561.09  3,529.24 
Income Tax expense: 32
Current tax  621.87  801.79 
Deferred tax (excluding MAT credit entitlement)  7.51 (12.51)
Earlier year adjustment  -    371.47 
Dividend distribution tax  -    262.08 
MAT credit entitlement  -   (72.55)
Total income tax expense  629.38  1,350.27 
Profit/( Loss) for the year  1,931.71  2,178.96 
Other comprehensive income 
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of a foreign operation  47.69  21.36 
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (3.97)  2.30 
Income tax effect  1.15 (1.48)
Other comprehensive income for the year  44.88  22.18 
Total comprehensive income for the year  1,976.59  2,201.00 
Profit attributable to :
Equity shareholders of parent company  1,728.37  1,813.78
Non-controlling Interest 203.34 365.18
Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholders of parent company  40.15  19.07 
Non-controlling interest  4.72  3.11 
Total Comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholders of parent company  1,768.52  1,832.85 
Non-controlling interest  208.00  368.29 
Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share (INR) 33  55.46  58.20 
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 33  55.46  58.20 
Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes (2-56) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital
Particulars As at

31 March 2020
As at

31 March 2019
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, 
subscribed and fully paid
Opening  3,116,342  311.63  3,116,342  311.63 
Add: Shares issued during the year  -  -    -  - 
Closing  3,116,342  311.63  3,116,342  311.63 

(B) Other equity

Particulars  Attributable to Equity Shareholders of Parent Company  Non 
Controlling 

Interest

 Total
Securities 
Premium 
Account

 Capital 
Reserve

 Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

 Items of OCI  Total 
Other 
Equity

 Foreign Currency 
Translation 

Reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2018 42.55 1,151.36 1,859.14  -   (3.14) 3,049.91 462.53 3,512.44 
Profit for the year  -    -   1,813.78  -    -   1,813.78 365.18 2,178.96 
Dividends (refer Note 42)  -    -    -    -    -    -   (37.50) (37.50)
Interim Dividend (refer Note 42)  -    -   (311.63)  -    -   (311.63) (187.50) (499.13)
Dividend Distribution Tax (refer Note 42)  -    -    -    -    -    -   (46.25) (46.25)
Other comprehensive income  -    -   0.28  -   18.79 19.07 3.11 22.18 
Total Comprehensive income for the 
year  -    -   1,502.43  -   18.79 1,521.22 97.04 1,618.26 

Balance as at March 31, 2019 42.55 1,151.36 3,361.57  -   15.65 4,571.13 559.58 5,130.70 

Particulars  Attributable to Equity Shareholders of Parent Company  Non 
Controlling 

Interest

 Total
Securities 
Premium 
Account

 Capital 
Reserve

 
Retained 
Earnings

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

 Items of OCI  Total 
Other 
Equity

 Foreign Currency 
Translation 

Reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2019 42.55 1,151.36 3,361.57  -    15.65 4,571.13 559.58 5,130.70 
Profit for the year  -    -   1,728.00  -    -   1,728.00 203.34 1,931.34 
Adjustment:Buy Back of Shares (42.55)  -   (1,556.16)  -    -   (1,598.71) (767.64) (2,366.35)
Other comprehensive income  -    -   (3.21)  -   42.97 39.76  -   39.76 
Less : Transfer to Capital redemption 
reserve  -    -   (5.00) 5.00  -    -   4.72 4.72 

Total Comprehensive income for the 
year (42.55)  -   163.63 5.00 42.97 169.05 (559.58) (390.53)

Balance as at March 31, 2020  -   1,151.36 3,525.20  5.00 58.61 4,741.17  -   4,741.17 

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes (2 - 56) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020
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(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars  Year ended

 31 March 2020
 Year ended

 31 March 2019
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  2,561.09  3,529.24 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortization and impairment  583.25  130.91 
Amortization of Right to use of asset  138.35  -   
Amortization of Goodwill  456.27  -   
Aircraft purchase option  15.55  10.29 
Gain on changes in fair value of investments (Mutual funds) (74.95) (12.94)
Income from sale of investments (Mutual funds) (55.32) (38.65)
Interest expense  93.53  132.83 
Interest income (61.26) (52.43)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts  23.74  23.74 
Gain on re-measurement of Liability towards Buy back of shares (125.92)  -   
Actuarial gain / (loss) on post-employment benefit obligation (15.51)  2.30 
Unrealised foreign exchange loss  43.55  51.37 
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes  3,582.36  3,776.65 
Changes in working capital
Decrease/ (increase) in trade and other receivables (774.70) (924.13)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  1,023.23  857.14 
Cash generated from / (used in) operations  3,830.89  3,709.66 
Income tax paid (571.78) (1,385.58)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)  3,259.11  2,324.08 
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (35.82) (30.56)
Investment in PPE - ROU of lease arrangments ( Ind AS adjustment) (1,011.23) -
Purchase of investments (3,955.00) (7,497.62)
Proceeds from sale of investments  2,402.52  6,553.08 
Repayment of loans (net)  16.19  40.00 
Dividend income from Subsidiary  -    -   
Interest/ Income received from Investments  116.58  52.43 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (2,466.76) (882.67)
Cash flow from financing activities
Addition / (Re-payment) of long-term borrowings - net  -    -   
Addition / (Re-payment) of short-term borrowings - net (36.06) (51.69)
Payment towards Buyback of Shares (Including tax on Byback) (765.55) -
Dividend paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax)  -   (582.88)
Interest paid (2.08) (7.96)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) (803.69) (642.53)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020
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(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars  Year ended

 31 March 2020
 Year ended

 31 March 2019
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (11.34)  798.88 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,427.19  620.07 
Effect of exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents (14.50) (13.13)
Foreign currency translation reserve / adjustments  47.18  21.36 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,448.52  1,427.19 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer Notes 11 and 12)
Balances with banks

On current accounts  1,074.78  1,125.52 
Margin money deposits with banks of less than 3 months maturity  -    101.51 

Cash on hand  0.86  0.38 
Margin money or under lien deposits  91.26  186.05 

On unpaid dividend accounts  9.55  9.57 
In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months from 
balance sheet date

 267.92 -

Money in fractional share entitlement account  4.15  4.16 
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year  1,448.52  1,427.19 

Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 2)
The accompanying notes (2 - 56) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements   

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1	 General information

	� TAAL Enterprises Limited ("TEL” or "the Parent 
Company” or “the Company”) together with its 
subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group”) is a public limited 
company incorporated in India under the Companies 
Act, 2013. TEL was earlier a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited (TAAL). However, 
pursuant to approval of the Scheme of Arrangement under 
Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 between 
TAAL & TEL, the Air Charter business of TAAL including 
investment in First Airways, Inc, USA and Engineering 
Design Services business conducted through TAAL Tech 
India Private Limited (TTIPL) has been demerged into 
TEL w.e.f. October 1, 2014 and TEL has seized to be 
a subsidiary of TAAL. Its principal business activity is 
providing Aircraft Charter Services.

2	 Significant accounting policies

	� Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are 
as under:

2.1	� Basis of preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements

	 (a)	 Statement of compliance with Ind AS

		�  These Consolidated Financial Statements have 
been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

		�  Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
to all the years presented except where a newly 
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires 
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

	 (b)	 Basis of measurement

		�  The Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual 
basis, except for items that have been measured at 
fair value as required by relevant Ind AS.

		�  The Group presents assets and liabilities in the 
Balance Sheet based on current / non-current 
classification.

		  An asset is treated as current when it is:

		  l 	� Expected to be realised or intended to be sold 
or consumed in normal operating cycle;

		  l 	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

		  l 	� Expected to be realised within twelve months 
after the reporting period; or

		  l 	� Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period.

			   All other assets are classified as non-current.

			   An liability is current when:

		  l 	� It is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle;

		  l 	� It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

		  l 	� It is due to be settled within twelve months 
after the reporting period; or

		  l �	� There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.

		  All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

		�  The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 
twelve months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

	 (c)	 Use of Estimates

		�  The preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the 
Management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amount of assets and 
liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported 
amount of revenue and expenses for the year and 
disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance 
Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used 
in the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements are based upon the Management's 
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances 
as at the date of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in 
the year in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future years affected. Refer note 3 for detailed 
discussion on estimates and judgments.

	 (d)	 Principles of Consolidation

		�  The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise 
the financial statements of the parent company and 
its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2020. Control is 
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, 
to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns 
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through its power over the investee. Specifically, the 
Group controls an investee if and only if the Group 
has:

		  l 	� Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights 
that give it the current ability to direct the 
relevant activities of the investee);

		  l 	� Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee; and

		  l 	� The ability to use its power over the investee to 
affect its returns.

		�  Generally, there is a presumption that a majority 
of voting rights result in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than 
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an 
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances in assessing whether it has power 
over an investee, including:

		  l 	� The contractual arrangement with the other 
vote holders of the investee;

		  l 	� Rights arising from other contractual 
arrangements;

		  l 	� The Group’s voting rights and potential voting 
rights;

		  l 	� The size of the group’s holding of voting 
rights relative to the size and dispersion of the 
holdings of the other voting rights holders.

		�  The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls 
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three 
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary 
begins when the Group obtains control over the 
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses 
control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed 
off during the year are included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements from the date the Group gains 
control until the date the Group ceases to control 
the subsidiary.

		�  Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared 
using uniform accounting policies for like transactions 
and other events in similar circumstances. If a 
member of the Group uses accounting policies other 
than those adopted in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for like transactions and events in 
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are 
made to that Group member’s financial statements 
in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements 
to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting 
policies.

		�  The financial statements of all entities used for the 
purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same 
reporting date as that of the parent company, 
i.e., year ended on March 31. When the end of 
the reporting period of the parent is different from 
that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, 
for consolidation purposes, additional financial 
information as of the same date as the financial 
statements of the parent to enable the parent 
to consolidate the financial information of the 
subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

		  Consolidation procedure:

		  (i) 	� Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows of the parent 
with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, 
income and expenses of the subsidiary are 
based on the amounts of the assets and 
liabilities recognised in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

		  (ii) 	� Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the 
parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the 
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. 
Business combinations policy explains how to 
account for any related goodwill.

		  (iii)	� Eliminate in full intra-group assets and 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash 
flows relating to transactions between entities 
of the group (Profits or losses resulting from 
intra-group transactions that are recognised 
in assets, such as inventory and property, 
plant and equipment, are eliminated in full). 
Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment 
that requires recognition in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Ind AS 12 - Income 
Taxes applies to temporary differences that 
arise from the elimination of profits and losses 
resulting from intra-group transactions.

		�  Profit or loss and each component of Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the 
equity shareholders of the parent of the Group and 
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results 
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit 
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made 
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring 
their accounting policies into line with the Group’s 
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows 
relating to transactions between members of the 
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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The following subsidiary companies have been considered in the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements :
Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Company

Relationship Country of 
Incorporation

Ownership 
Interest held by 
the Parent as at 
March 31, 2020

Accounting Period Audited / 
Un-audited

1 TAAL Tech India 
Private Limited 
(TTIPL)

Direct subsidiary India 89% April 19 - March 20 Audited

2 First Airways Inc, 
USA Direct subsidiary USA 100% April 19 - March 20 Audited

3 TAAL Technologies 
Inc, Indirect subsidiary 

of TEL and direct 
subsidary of TTIPL

USA 100% April 19 - March 20 Audited

4 TAAL Tech 
Innovations GmbH Austria 100% April 19 - March 20 Management 

Certified
5 TAAL Tech GmbH Switzerland 100% April 19 - March 20 Audited

2.2	 Business combination and goodwill

	� After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less 
any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business 
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated 
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are 
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective 
of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are 
assigned to those units.

	� A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been 
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more 
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may 
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the 
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to 
the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying 
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for 
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss 
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent 
periods.

	� Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating 
unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 
off, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation 
is included in the carrying amount of the operation 
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill 
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on 
the relative values of the disposed operation and the 
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

2.3	 Property, plant and equipment

	� Property, plant and equipment are stated at their original 
cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost of 
property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase 
price including duties, taxes, freight and any other directly 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for its intended use. However, cost excludes 
Excise duty, VAT, GST and Service tax, wherever credit 
of the duty or tax is availed of.

	� All indirect expenses incurred during acquisition / 
construction of property, plant and equipment including 
interest cost on funds deployed for the property, plant 
and equipment are treated as incidental expenditure and 
are capitalised for the period until the asset is ready for 
its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the 
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably.

	� The carrying amount of any component accounted for 
as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which 
they are incurred.

	� Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant 
and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date 
is classified as capital advances under other non-current 
assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such 
date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. 
Property, plant and equipment received from Taneja 
Aerospace and Aviation Limited pursuant to Demerger of 
its “Air Charter Business” are recorded at its book value 
as on the appointed date.
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	� Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

	� In case of parent company, depreciation is provided 
on straight line method on Computer-Hardware and on 
written down value method on Office Equipment and 
Furniture and Fixtures, based on the useful lives of 
assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

	� In case of subsidiary company TAAL Tech India Private 
Limited, depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
is provided on written down value method based on 
the useful lives of assets as prescribed under Part C 
of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold 
improvements are depreciated over their estimated 
useful life, or the remaining period of lease from the date 
of capitalization, whichever is shorter.

	� Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment 
is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition. 
Depreciation on sale / deduction from property, plant and 
equipment is provided up to the date preceding the date 
of sale / deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses 
on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with 
carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss under 'Other Income'.

	� Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2.4	 Intangible assets

	� An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable 
that the future economic benefits attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and where its cost can 
be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at 
cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase 
price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to 
its working condition for its intended use which includes 
taxes, freight, and installation and allocated incidental 
expenditure during construction / acquisition and 
exclusive of CENVAT credit or other tax credit available 
to the Group.

	� Subsequent expenditure relating to intangible assets 
is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an 
increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond 
its previously assessed standard of performance.

	� Intangibles assets are amortized over a period of three 
financial years starting with the year in which these 
assets are procured.

2.5	 Foreign currency transactions

	 (a)	 Functional and presentation currency

		�  Items included in the consolodated financial 
statements are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the 
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The 
consolodated financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group’s functional 
and presentation currency.

		�  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the 
reporting currency by applying the exchange rate 
between the reporting currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction.

	 (b)	 Transactions and balances

		�  On initial recognition, all foreign currency 
transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the 
date of the transaction. Gains / (Losses) arising out 
of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the 
transaction date and settlement date are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		�  All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are restated at the year end at the 
exchange rate prevailing at the year end and 
the exchange differences are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

		�  Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of 
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction; non-monetary items which 
are carried at fair value or other similar valuation 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rates that existed when such 
values were determined.

		�  On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of 
foreign operations are translated into INR at the 
rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date 
and their statements of profit or loss are translated 
at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. For practical reasons, the Group 
uses an average rate to translate income and 
expense items, if the average rate approximates 
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 
The exchange differences arising on translation for 
consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of 
a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating 
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in 
profit or loss.

2.6	 Fair value measurement

	� Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
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asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either:

	 l 	 In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

	 l 	� In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability 
accessible to the Group.

	� The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate 
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	� All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured 
or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as 
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

	 l 	� Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

	 l 	� Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

	 l 	� Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.

2.7	 Revenue recognition

	� Effective April 1, 2018, the Group adopted Ind AS 115 
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the 
cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to 
contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. 
In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition 
method , the comparatives have not been retrospectively 
adjusted. The following is a summary of new and/or 
revised significant accounting policies related to revenue 
recognition.

	� Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of 
promised goods and services to the customers in an 
amount that reflects the consideration we expect to 
receive in exchange for those goods and services and 
where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or 
collectability of consideration.

	� Charter income from aircraft given on charter is booked 
on the basis of contract with customers and on completion 
of actual flying hours of the aircraft.

	� Revenue from time and material service contracts is 

recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as 
and when services are rendered and the collectability is 
reasonably assured.

	� Revenue from long term fixed price, fixed time frame 
contracts where the performance obligations are satisfied 
over time and there is no uncertainty as to measurement 
or collectability of consideration, is recognized as per 
the percentage-of-completion method or the completion 
method, whichever best depicts measurement of the 
progress in transferring control to the customer and billed 
in terms of the agreement with and certification by the 
customer.

	� The Group accounts for volume discounts and pricing 
incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based 
on the ratable allocation of the discounts/ incentives 
to each of the underlying performance obligation that 
corresponds to the progress by the customer towards 
earning the discount/ incentive. Also, when the level 
of discount varies with increases in levels of revenue 
transactions, the Group recognizes the liability based on 
its estimate of the customer's future purchases. If it is 
probable that the criteria for the discount will not be met, 
or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated reliably, 
then discount is not recognized until the payment is 
probable and the amount can be estimated reliably. The 
Group recognizes changes in the estimated amount 
of obligations for discounts in the period in which the 
change occurs. The discounts are passed on to the 
customer either as direct payments or as a reduction of 
payments due from the customer.

	� The Group presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its 
Statement of Profit and loss.

	� Revenue recognized in excess of billings is classified 
as contract assets (‘Unbilled revenue’) included in other 
current financial assets.

	� Billings in excess of revenue recognized is classified as 
contract liabilities (‘Deferred revenue’) included in other 
current liabilities.

	� The impact of applying Ind AS 115 Revenue from 
contract with customers instead of the erstwhile Ind AS 
18 Revenue on the financials statements of the Group 
for the year ended and as at March 31, 2020 is not 
significant.

	 Other Income

	� Interest income is recognised on basis of effective interest 
method as set out in Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, 
and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability 
or collectability exists. Claims towards insurance claims 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020



70

TAAL Enterprises Limited

are accounted in the year of settlement and / or in the 
year of acceptance of claim / certainty of realisation as 
the case may be. Dividend income is recognised when 
the right to receive payment is established.

2.8	 Taxes

	�� Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and 
deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net 
profit or loss for the year.

	 (a)	 Current income tax

		�  Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at 
the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current 
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the 
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 (b)	 Deferred tax

		�  Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the 
balance sheet approach, on temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Deferred income tax is also 
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than 
a business combination that at the time of the 
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor 
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end 
of the year and are expected to apply when the 
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the 
deferred income tax liability is settled.

		�  Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences and unused tax losses only 
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be 
available to utilize those temporary differences and 
losses.

		�  Management periodically evaluates positions taken 
in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. 
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the 
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 

tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation authority.

		�  Current and deferred tax is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that 
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 
also recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, respectively.

		  Minimum Alternate Tax

		�  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under the provisions 
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current 
tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit 
available under the Act, in respect of MAT paid is 
recognised as asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay 
normal income tax during the period for which the 
MAT credit can be carried forward for set- off against 
the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an 
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and 
written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing 
evidence no longer exists.

2.9	 Leases

	 As a lessee

	� Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group 
as a lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments 
made under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of 
the lease unless the payments are structured to increase 
in line with expected general inflation to compensate for 
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

	� Also initial direct cost incurred in operating lease such as 
commissions, legal fees and internal costs is recognised 
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	� Where the Group, as lessee, has substantially transferred 
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the 
lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property 
or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of 
finance charges, are included in borrowings or other 
financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment 
is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The 
finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability for each period.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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2.10	Impairment of non-financial assets

	� The Group assesses at each year end whether there 
is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset 
or a group of non-financial assets is impaired. If any 
such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

	� An impairment loss is calculated as the difference 
between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable 
amount. Losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and reflected in an allowance account. When 
the Group considers that there are no realistic prospects 
of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written 
off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently 
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to 
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, 
then the previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	� The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating 
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash inflows from 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).

2.11	Provisions and contingent liabilities

	� Provisions are recognised when there is a present 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions 
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the balance 
sheet date.

	� If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the 
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost.

	� De-commissioning costs (if any), are provided at the 
present value of expected costs to settle the obligation 
using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part 
of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are 

discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks 
specific to the de-commissioning liability. The unwinding 
of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. The 
estimated future costs of de-commissioning are reviewed 
annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the 
estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are 
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

	� Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a 
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Group or a present 
obligation that arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be 
made.

2.12	Borrowing cost

	� Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary 
costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as 
an adjustment to the interest cost.

	� Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the assets, up to the date the asset is 
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

2.13	Cash and cash equivalents

	� Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet 
comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term 
deposits net of bank overdraft with an original maturity of 
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

	� For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and 
cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks 
and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft.

2.14	Government grants

	� Government grants are recognised where there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When 
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as 
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the 
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, 
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it 
is recognised as income in equal amounts over the 
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expected useful life of the related asset.

	� When the Group receives grants of non-monetary 
assets, the asset and the grants are recorded at fair value 
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected 
useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the 
underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments.

2.15	Financial instruments

	� A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

	 (a)	 Financial assets

		  (i)	 Initial recognition and measurement

			�   At initial recognition, financial asset is 
measured at its fair value plus, in the case 
of a financial asset not at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.

		  (ii)	 Subsequent measurement

			�   For purposes of subsequent measurement, 
financial assets are classified in following 
categories:

			   a) 	 at amortized cost; or

			   b) 	� at fair value through other comprehensive 
income; or

			   c) 	� at fair value through profit or loss.

			�   The classification depends on the entity’s 
business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the cash 
flows.

			�   Amortized cost: Assets that are held for 
collection of contractual cash flows where 
those cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest are measured at 
amortized cost. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in finance income 
using the Effective Interest Rate method (EIR).

			�   Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for 
collection of contractual cash flows and 
for selling the financial assets, where the 
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest, are measured at 

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for 
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains 
and losses which are recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset 
is de-recognised, the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is re-classified 
from equity to the Statement of Profit and 
Loss and recognised in other gains / (losses). 
Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective 
interest rate method.

			�   Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): 
Assets that do not meet the criteria for 
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in other 
income.

		  (iii)	 Impairment of financial assets

			�   In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial 
Instruments, the Group applies Expected 
Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on financial 
assets that are measured at amortized cost 
and FVOCI.

			�   For recognition of impairment loss on 
financial assets and risk exposure, the Group 
determines that whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk 
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is 
used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of 
the instrument improves such that there is no 
longer a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to 
recognising impairment loss allowance based 
on 12-months ECL.

			�   Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses 
resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial instrument. 
The 12-months ECL is a portion of the lifetime 
ECL which results from default events that are 
possible within 12 months after the year end.

			�   ECL is the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the Group in 
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accordance with the contract and all the 
cash flows that the entity expects to receive 
(i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original 
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an 
entity is required to consider all contractual 
terms of the financial instrument (including 
prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected 
life of the financial instrument. However, in rare 
cases when the expected life of the financial 
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then 
the entity is required to use the remaining 
contractual term of the financial instrument.

			�   In general, it is presumed that credit risk has 
significantly increased since initial recognition 
if the payment is more than 30 days past due.

			   Trade receivables

			�   An impairment analysis is performed at each 
reporting date on an individual basis for major 
clients. It is based on its historically observed 
default rates over the expected life of the 
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the 
historical observed default rates are updated 
and changes in the forward-looking estimates 
are analysed. On that basis, the Company 
estimates the provision at the reporting date.

		  (iv)	 De-recognition of financial assets

			�   A financial asset is de-recognised only when:

			   a) 	� the rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset is transferred; or

			   b) 	� retains the contractual rights to receive 
the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay 
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

			�   Where the financial asset is transferred then in 
that case financial asset is de-recognised only if 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset is transferred. Where 
the entity has not transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

	 (b)	 Financial liabilities

		  (i)	 Initial recognition and measurement

			�   Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss and at amortized cost, as 
appropriate.

			�   All financial liabilities are recognised initially 
at fair value and, in the case of borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

		  (ii)	 Subsequent measurement

			�   The measurement of financial liabilities 
depends on their classification, as described 
below:

			�   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss

			�   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or 
loss.

			   Loans and borrowings

			�   After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains 
and losses are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are 
de-recognised as well as through the EIR 
amortization process. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included as finance costs in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  (iii)	 De-recognition

			�   A financial liability is de-recognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as finance costs.

	 (c)	 Embedded derivatives

		�  An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid 
(combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract – with the effect that some 
of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in 
a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives 
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embedded in all other host contract are separated 
if the economic characteristics and risks of the 
embedded derivative are not closely related to the 
economic characteristics and risks of the host and 
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
Embedded derivatives closely related to the host 
contracts are not separated.

		�  Re-assessment only occurs if there is either a 
change in the terms of the contract that significantly 
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be 
required or a re-classification of a financial asset out 
of the fair value through profit or loss.

	 (d)	 Offsetting financial instruments

		�  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the 
net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable 
right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of 
business and in the event of default, insolvency or 
bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.16	Employee benefits

	 (a)	 Short-term obligations

		�  Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12-months after the end of the year 
in which the employees render the related service 
are recognised in respect of employees’ services 
up to the end of the year and are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.

	 (b)	 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

		  (i)	 Defined contribution plan

			�   The Group makes defined contribution to 
provident fund and superannuation fund, 
which are recognised as an expense in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
on accrual basis. The Group has no further 
obligations under these plans beyond its 
monthly contributions.

		  (ii)	 Defined benefit plans

			�   The Group’s liabilities under Payment of 
Gratuity Act and long-term compensated 

absences are determined on the basis of 
actuarial valuation made at the end of each 
financial year using the projected unit credit 
method, except for short-term compensated 
absences, which are provided on actual basis. 
Actuarial losses / gains are recognised in the 
other comprehensive income in the year in 
which they arise. Obligations are measured 
at the present value of estimated future cash 
flows using a discount rate that is determined 
by reference to market yields at the Balance 
Sheet date on government bonds where the 
currency and terms of the government bonds 
are consistent with the currency and estimated 
terms of the defined benefit obligation.

		  (iii)	 Leave encashment - Encashable

			�   Accumulated compensated absences, which 
are expected to be availed or encashed within 
12 months from the end of the year are treated 
as short term employee benefits. The obligation 
towards the same is measured at the expected 
cost of accumulating compensated absences 
as the additional amount expected to be paid 
as a result of the unused entitlement as at the 
year end.

			�   Accumulated compensated absences, which 
are expected to be availed or encashed 
beyond 12 months from the end of the year 
end are treated as other long term employee 
benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially 
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit 
method) at the end of each year. Actuarial 
losses/gains are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss in the year in which they 
arise.

2.17	Earnings per share

	� Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders of parent company by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Group's 
earnings per share is the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders of parent company 
after deducting preference dividends and any attributable 
tax thereto for the year. The weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all 
the years presented is adjusted for events, that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, 
without a corresponding change in resources.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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	� For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 
share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders of parent company and the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the year 
is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

2.18	Segment reporting

	� Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent 
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. The Group’s operating businesses 
are organised and managed separately according to 
the nature of services provided, with each segment 
representing a strategic business unit that offers different 
services and serves different markets. Thus, as defined 
in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the business 
segments are ‘Air Charter’ and ‘Engineering Design 
Service’. The Group does not have any geographical 
segment.

2.19	Aircraft purchase option

	� Aircraft purchase options are recorded at cost on the 
date of acquisition. Aircraft purchase option is amortised 
over its estimated useful life or the legal life (as per the 
amended agreement), whichever is lower with a mid-
quarter convention.

3	� Significant accounting judgments, estimates and 
assumptions

	� The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 
requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the 
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected in future years.

3.1	 Estimates and assumptions

	� The key assumptions concerning the future and other 
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year end 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, are described 
below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates 
on parameters available when the financial statements 
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 
about future developments, however, may change due to 
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond 
the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in 
the assumptions when they occur.

	 (a)	 Defined benefits and other long-term benefits

		�  The cost of the defined benefit plans such as 
gratuity and leave encashment are determined 
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions that may 
differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due 
to the complexities involved in the valuation and 
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each year end.

		�  The principal assumptions are the discount and 
salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon 
the market yields available on government bonds at 
the accounting date with a term that matches that 
of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account 
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors on long-term basis.

	 (b)	 Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

		�  In assessing impairment, management estimates 
the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-
generating units based on expected future cash 
flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. 
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about 
future operating results and the determination of a 
suitable discount rate. During the year, the Group 
does not recognise an impairment loss on goodwill.
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5 Property, Plant and Equipment
Gross block Depreciation Net block

As at Additions / Deductions / As at As at For the 
year

Deductions / As at As at As at
1 April 2019 Adjustments Adjustments 31 March 2020 1 April 2019 Adjustments 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Owned assets
Computer - Hardware  247.45  19.27  0.50  266.72  199.32  27.90  -    227.23  39.49  48.12 
Office Equipment  13.64  0.26  -    13.89  7.53  2.97  -    10.50  3.40  6.11 
Vehicles  33.39  -    -    33.39  14.85  9.72  -    24.57  8.82  18.54 
Furniture and Fixtures  29.61  0.62  -    30.23  16.51  3.04  -    19.55  10.68  13.10 
Leasehold 
Improvements

 88.66  -    -    88.66  79.69  8.97  0.08  88.66  0.00  8.97 

Total  412.74  20.15  0.50  432.90  317.90  52.60  0.08  370.50  62.39  94.84 

Gross block Depreciation Net block
As at Additions / Deductions / As at As at For the 

year
Deductions / As at As at As at

1 April 2018 Adjustments Adjustments 31 March 2019 1 April 2018 Adjustments 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Owned assets
Computer - Hardware  235.19  12.26  -    247.45  137.30  62.02  -    199.32  48.12  97.89 
Office Equipment  9.41  4.22  -    13.64  3.97  3.56  -    7.53  6.11  5.44 
Vehicles  22.13  11.26  -    33.39  8.03  6.82  -    14.85  18.54  14.10 
Furniture and Fixtures  28.04  1.58  -    29.61  12.47  4.04  -    16.51  13.10  15.57 
Leasehold 
Improvements

 88.66  -    -    88.66  70.72  8.97  -    79.69  8.97  17.94 

Total  383.43  29.31  -    412.74  232.49  85.41  -    317.90  94.84  150.94 

6.1 Intangible Assets
Gross block Depreciation Net block

As at Additions / Deductions / As at As at For the 
year

Deductions / As at As at As at
1 April 2019 Adjustments Adjustments 31 March 2020 1 April 2019 Adjustments 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Computer - Software  184.33  15.17  -    199.50  164.13  24.45  -    188.58  10.92  20.19 
Total  184.33  15.17  -    199.50  164.13  24.45  -    188.58  10.92  20.19 

Gross block Depreciation Net block
As at Additions / Deductions / As at As at For the 

year
Deductions / As at As at As at

1 April 2018 Adjustments Adjustments 31 March 2019 1 April 2018 Adjustments 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Computer - Software  183.08  1.25  -    184.33  118.64  45.50  -    164.13  20.19  64.44 
Total  183.08  1.25  -    184.33  118.64  45.50  -    164.13  20.19  64.44 

6.2 Gross block Depreciation Net block
As at Additions / Deductions / As at As at For the 

year
Deductions / As at As at As at

1 April 2019 Adjustments Adjustments 31 March 2020 1 April 2019 Adjustments 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Right of use assets  -    1,092.97  -    1,092.97  -    506.20  138.35  644.55  448.42  -   
Total  -    1,092.97  -    1,092.97  -    506.20  138.35  644.55  448.42  -   

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the leased aircraft (Right of Use asset) operated by the Holding Company as part 
of the charter business had veered off the runway during a landing, resulting in damage to the aircraft. This mishap has 
caused damage to the aircraft. The aircraft remains grounded since the incident on September 12, 2019. This incident was 
duly reported to the Bombay Stock Exchange and the Directorate General of Civil Aviation.

The Company had initiated the process of claim with the Insurance Company who is appraising the damage with the help 
of manufacturer representative. The Company is awaiting an updated from the Insurance Company in this regard.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

During the year, considering the fact that the aircraft remains non-operational, and the uncertainty around the timing of 
recommencement of the charter operations and not withstanding the future receipt of insurance claim, the Group has 
assessed the carrying value of the Right of Use asset and consequently written down the carrying value of the ROU by 
recognizing an impairment loss of Rs 1,35,38,332/-as an exceptional charge during the year. The Group continues to carry 
the outstanding liability the lease obligations as per the terms of the lease agreement.This incident was duly reported to the 
Bombay Stock Exchange and the Directorate General of Civil Aviation.The Company has initiated the process of claim is in 
advanced stage with the Insurance Company.

7 Financial Assets - Investments
Particulars  31 March 2020  31 March 2019

Investments at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) (fully paid)
- Investments in mutual funds (Quoted) (Refer footnote i)  2,531.41  996.13 
Total Current financial assets - Investments  2,531.41  996.13 

Current  2,531.41  996.13 
Non- Current  -    -   

 2,531.41  996.13 
Aggregate book value of:
Quoted investments  2,531.41  996.13 
Unquoted investments  -    -   
Aggregate market value of:
Quoted investments  2,531.41  996.13 
Unquoted investments  -    -   
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments  -    -   

Footnote:
i. Details of investments in mutual funds (Quoted) designated as FVTPL:

Particulars  Number of units Amount
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
As at 

March 31, 2019
 As at 

March 31, 2020
As at 

March 31, 2019
TATA Liquid Fund  74,430  -    2,331.02  -   
HDFC Arbitrage fund  38,874  30,974.77  200.39  912.03 
TATA Money Market Fund  -    2,856.26  -    84.10 

8 Non-current financial assets - Loans
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits  180.82  158.94 
Total Non-current financial assets - Loans  180.82  158.94 

9 Other non-current assets
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Prepaid rent  -    91.74 
Total Other non-current assets  -    91.74 
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10 Trade receivables
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Unsecured
Considered good  2,285.97  2,585.83 
Considered doubtful  23.74  23.74 
Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (23.74) (23.74)

 2,285.97  2,585.83 
Further classified as:
Receivable from related parties  -    -   
Receivable from others  2,285.97  2,585.83 
Total Trade receivables  2,285.97  2,585.83 

11 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balances with banks
- On current accounts  1,074.78  1,125.52 
- Margin money deposits with banks (Less than 3 months maturity)  -    101.51 
Cash on hand  0.86  0.38 
Total Cash and cash equivalents  1,075.64  1,227.41 

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Margin money or under lein deposits  91.26  186.05 
unpaid dividend accounts  9.55  9.57 
Money in fractional share entitlement account  4.15  4.16 
In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but 
less than 12 months from balance sheet date

 267.92  -   

Total Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents  372.87  199.77 

13 Current financial assets - Loans
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits  9.51  10.88 
Loans recoverable in cash  113.81  130.00 
Total Current financial assets - Loans  123.32  140.88 

14 Current financial assets - Others
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  8.65  3.75 
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind  114.79  109.60 
Other receivables (Unbilled revenue)  144.77  135.69 
Export incentives receivable (SEIS)  545.96  407.50 
Total Current financial assets - Others  814.17  656.55 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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15 Current tax assets (net)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Advance income tax  14.17  11.55 
[net of tax provision INR Nil (March 31, 2019: INR 11,54,000)]
Total Current tax assets (net)  14.17  11.55 

16 Other current assets
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balance with government authorities  1,005.82  979.96 
Advance to suppliers  37.72  32.27 
Advance to staff  0.54  0.81 
Prepaid expenses  190.41  206.71 
Prepaid rent  -    36.08 
Other receivables  25.75  -   
Total Other current assets  1,260.24  1,255.84 

17 Equity share capital
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorised
50,00,000 (March 31, 2018: 50,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 each  500.00  500.00 

 500.00  500.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
31,16,342 (March 31, 2018: 31,16,342) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-
up

 311.63  311.63 

Total Equity share capital  311.63  311.63 

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year  3,116,342  311.63  3,116,342  311.63 
Add: Equity Shares issued during the year  -  -  -  - 
Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the 
year

 3,116,342  311.63  3,116,342  311.63 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The parent company has only one class of equity shares of INR 10/- each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per 
share held. Dividend if any declared is payable in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the parent company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining 
assets of the parent company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders of the parent company.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(c) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares 
bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts for consideration 
other than cash as per the Scheme of Demerger

3,116,342  3,116,342 

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the parent company
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Number of 
shares

% of holding in 
the class

Number of 
shares

% of holding in 
the class

Vishkul Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.  1,581,297 50.74%  1,581,297 50.74%

As per records of the parent company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations 
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial 
ownership of shares.

(e) No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years or period elapsed from the 
date of incorporation whichever is earlier.

18 Other equity
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Capital reserve
Opening balance  1,151.36  1,151.36 
Less; Adjustment for Conslidation Good will/ Capital Reserve  -    -   
Closing balance  1,151.36  1,151.36 

(b) Securities premium account
Opening balance  42.55  42.55 
Less: Buy Back of shares (42.55)
Closing balance  -    42.55 

(c) Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance  -    -   
Add: Transfer from Retained earnings  5.00 
Closing balance  5.00  -   

(d) Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance  -    -   
Add: Currency translation gain / (loss) during the year  47.69  21.36 
Less: Transfer to other comprehensive income (42.97) (18.79)
Less: Transfer to non-controlling interest (4.72) (2.57)
Closing balance  -    -   

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
(e) Retained earnings

Opening balance  3,361.57  1,859.14 
Net profit for the current year  1,931.71  2,178.96 
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (2.81)  0.82 
Buy Back of Shares (2,323.58)  -   
Transfer to Capital Redumption Reserve (5.00)
Interim Dividend (refer Note 42)  -   (311.63)
Transfer to non-controlling interest  564.30 (365.72)
Closing balance  3,526.20  3,361.57 

(f) Other comprehensive income
Opening balance  15.65 (3.14)
Add: Transfer from foreign currency translation reserve  42.97  18.79 
Closing balance  58.61  15.65 
Total Other equity  4,741.17  4,571.13 

19 Provisions
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Non-current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity  11.56  4.77 
Provision for leave encashment  16.14  13.27 

 27.70  18.04 
(b) Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity  -    0.06 
Provision for leave encashment  -    0.29 

 -    0.35 
Total Provisions  27.70  18.39 

20 Other non-current liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Lease equalization reserve  -    72.37 
Derivative Liability - Buy back of shares  1,473.25  -   
Total Other non-current liabilities  1,473.25  72.37 

21 Short-term borrowings
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks - Working capital borrowing from banks  -    36.06 
Total Short-term borrowings  -    36.06 

Working capital loan from banks is secured against the hypothecation of stock and book debts on pari-passu basis and second 
charge on property, plant and equipment, all belonging to the demerged company 'Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited'.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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22 Trade payables
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises *  55.06  107.64 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

 346.47  905.19 

Total Trade payables  401.54  1,012.84 
* The identification of micro, small and medium enterprise suppliers as defined 
under the provisions of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development 
Act, 2006" [MSMED Act] is based on confirmation received from suppliers.

i.    �The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid as at the year end, 
Interest amount due and remaining unpaid as at the year end

 55.06  107.64 

ii.    �The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the amount 
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
accounting year

 -    -   

iii.   �The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 -    -   

iv.   �The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as the year end in 
respect of principal amount settled during the year

 -    -   

v.   � �The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

 -    -   

23 Other current financial liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Employee related liabilities  612.32  206.94 
Other payables  364.21  485.94 
Customer claims payable  371.05  371.05 
Lease Liability  833.53  -   
Unpaid dividend  9.55  9.57 
Total Other current financial liabilities  2,190.67  1,073.51 

24 Other current liabilities
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Statutory due payable  126.54  243.21 
Advance from customers  14.15  56.01 
Deferred revenue  -    70.69 
Buyback of shares tranche 2 in Subsidiary compnay
Total Other current liabilities  140.69  369.91 

25 Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current tax Provision [net of advance taxes* INR 8,07,00,000 (31 March 2019:   
INR *17,34,88,290)]

 312.71  300.07 

Total Current tax liabilities (net)  312.71  300.07 

*Advance taxes included amounts paid under protest INR Nil (31 March 2019: IND 98,81,206)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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26 Revenue from operations
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Sale of services
Charter income  425.30  782.40 
Export of engineering design services  12,563.10  14,134.38 

Sale of goods
Export of goods  2.54  62.73 

Total Revenue from operations  12,990.94  14,979.52 

Desegregation of revenue (Sale of engineering design services)
Time & Material contracts 12,357.15  14,053.55 
Fixed price contracts 205.95  80.84 
Total  12,563.10  14,134.38 
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price
Contract price 13,045.79  15,071.23 
Adjustments for:
Volume discounts (54.85) (91.71)
Revenue recognised  12,990.94  14,979.52 

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations*
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to long-term fixed price contracts that are partially or fully unsatisfied as on  
31 March 2020 is INR 134.23 Lakhs which the Company expects to fully recognize as revenue in the financial year 
2019-20. All other contracts are for one year or less or billed based on time incurred. As permitted under Ind AS 115, the 
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
* As permitted under the transitional provisions of Ind AS 115, the transaction price allocated to partially or fully unsatisfied 
performance obligations as on 31 March 2020 is not disclosed.

27 Other income
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Dividend income  -    -   
Interest income  39.38  70.19 
Interest income - Bank  -    -   
Gain on changes in fair value of investments (mutual funds)  74.95  12.94 
Miscellaneous income  76.65  1.06 
Rental income  24.14  -   
Net gain on foreign currency transactions  124.97  -   
Income from sale of investments (Mutual funds)  55.32  38.65 
Fair valuation adjustments of Investments designated as FVTPL*  96.01  -   
Income from export incentives (SEIS)**  136.99  622.72 
Liabilities written back  24.53  0.02 
Gain on re-measurement of Liability towards Buy back of shares  125.92 
Total Other income  778.86  745.59 

*� �FVTPL of Investments represent fair valuation changes in mutual funds which include dividend declared and not 
distributed (distributed based on record dates) as at reporting dates, which have not been recognized separately in 
financial statements.

**�Pursuant to the Notification 57/2015-20 issued by the Director General Foreign Trade (DGFT) the rates for availing 
the SEIS incentives for the period April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 are not yet notified by the authorities and therefore 
pending this the Company has not made any accrual towards SEIS. Amount recognized in current year relates to export 
incentives of earlier year.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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28 Employee benefits expense
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 7,383.57*  7,852.37 
Contribution to provident and other funds  125.92  133.69 
Gratuity expenses (refer Note 34)  44.66  45.78 
Staff welfare expenses  36.00  44.53 
Total Employee benefits expense  7,590.16  8,076.37 

* The amount includes INR 419.05 lacs (2019 - INR 442.31 lacs) incurred towards expenses for hiring of contract 
employees for the technical services and the amount has been regrouped from other expenses

29 Finance costs
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Interest on loans  2.08  7.96 
Interest on delayed payment of taxes  2.98  128.39 
Other finance costs  20.92  17.31 
Interest on Leases  114.37  -   
Bank charges  36.36  30.27 
Total Finance costs  176.70  183.94 

30 Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

On property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5)  52.60  85.41 
On intangible assets (Refer note 6)  24.45  45.50 
Depreciation on ROU  506.20  -   
Total Depreciation and amortization expense  583.25  130.91 

31 Other expenses
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Aircraft fuel charges  68.78  134.36 
Amortisation of aircraft purchase option (Refer note 38)  15.55  10.29 
Aircraft lease rent ^  1.05  261.98 
Aircraft repairs and maintenance  10.87  3.13 
Rent - Flight parking and equipment  16.59  38.53 
Other aircraft operating expenses  45.77  199.09 
Consumption of stores and spare parts  27.81  40.08 
Advertisement  1.33  1.24 
Power, fuel, gas and water  88.07  81.51 
Rent  348.42  399.84 
Repairs and maintenance - Others  139.17  537.34 
Insurance  198.39  195.40 
Rates and taxes  28.00  92.69 
Registration and renewal  8.97  14.29 
Travelling expenses  502.88  534.33 
Auditor's remuneration #  26.47  22.29 
Printing and stationery  8.82  11.96 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Communication expenses  58.79  70.85 
Legal and professional charges  350.88  294.43 
Loss on foreign exchange transactions (net)  9.75  38.67 
Provision for bad and doubtful debts  46.74  23.74 
Customer claims  34.71  371.05 
Service tax receivable written off  -    106.53 
Sitting fee  7.00  8.20 
Debtors written off  57.91  2.94 
Miscellaneous expenses  73.23  122.23 
Training expenses  42.77  16.32 
Visa and work permit expenses  45.28  171.32 
Total Other expenses  2,263.98  3,804.65 

# The following is the break-up of Auditor's remuneration (exclusive of service tax / GST)

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As auditor:
Statutory audit 20.17  18.70 
In other capacity:
Limited review  3.00  3.00 
GST Audit fee  0.50 
Certification charges  1.66    -   
Reimbursement of expenses 1.15  0.59 
Total  26.47  22.29 

^ Aircraft lease rent
The aircraft has been acquired on operating lease from an overseas lease finance company for a period of 153 months 
(Refer note 38).
The payments under lease for the future period as at March 31, 2020 are:

Particulars Amount in 
US$

Equivalent in 
INR

Within one year  150,000.00  112.99 
After one year but not more than five years  -    -   
More than five years  -    -   
Total  150,000.00  112.99 

The payments under lease for the future period as at March 31, 2019 are:
Particulars Amount in 

US$
Equivalent in 

INR
Within one year  300,000.00  207.51 
After one year but not more than five years  150,000.00  103.76 
More than five years  -    -   
Total  450,000.00  311.27 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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32 Income tax
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(A) Deferred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax assets
On property, plant and equipment  28.69  14.09 
On provision for doubtful debts  -    6.91 
On provision for employee benefits  17.22  1.32 
Others  3.65  37.77 
MAT Credit Entitlement  369.44  369.44 
Total Deferred tax assets  419.01  429.52 
Deferred tax liabilities
On property, plant and equipment  -    -   
Total Deferred tax liabilities  -    -   
Deferred tax asset (net)*  419.01  429.52 

(B) Recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax liability
Balance Sheet
Deferred tax assets  49.57  60.08 
Deferred tax liabilities  -    -   
MAT credit entitlement  369.44  369.44 
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)  419.01  429.52 

(C) The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied 
by India's tax rate :
Tax expenses as per the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax  621.87  801.78 
Deferred tax (excluding MAT credit entitlement)  7.51 (12.51)
Earlier year adjustment  -   371.47 
Dividend Distribution Tax  -    262.08 
MAT credit entitlement  -   (72.55)
Total Income tax expense  629.38  1,350.27 
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense  3,155.72  3,529.24 
Income tax rate 29.12% 29.12%
Tax computed using statutory tax rate  918.94  1,027.71 
Tax effect of:
Permanent disallowances  5.57  65.47 
Section 10AA deduction (SEZ unit) (281.57) (320.17)
Tax impact of other group companies 65.01  -   
Earlier year adjustment  -   371.47 
Dividend Distribution Tax  -    262.08 
Deferred tax on temporary diferrences not recognized earlier (6.65) (13.45)
Overseas taxes (82.67) (28.17)
Others  10.74 (14.66)
Income tax expense  629.38  1,350.27 
Effective tax rate 19.94% 38.26%

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note:  �*Deferred tax asset (net) pertains to the subsidiary TAAL Tech India Private Limited. Deferred tax calculations of 
the Parent Company result into deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2020 as well as at March 31, 2019. However, 
as a matter of prudence, the Parent Company has not recognized deferred tax assets as it is not probable that the 
Parent Company will have future taxable profits.

33 Earnings per share
Basic earnings / (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average 
number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company  1,728  1,814 
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS  3,116,342  3,116,342 

Basic earnings per share (INR)  55.46  58.20 
Diluted earnings per share (INR)  55.46  58.20 

34 Employee benefits
The Group has calculated the various benefits provided to employees as under:

(A) Defined contribution plans
During the period the Group has recognised the following amounts as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss:-

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a) Employer's contribution to provident fund  125.92  133.69 
b) Employer's contribution to superannuation fund  0.44  0.53 

(B) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity payable to employees
An actuarial valuation was carried out in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plans based on the following assumptions:

i) Actuarial assumptions:
Particulars Gratuity

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate (per annum) 6.50% - 7.60% 7.50% - 7.60%
Rate of increase in salary 8% - 10% 8% - 10%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Attrition rate 2% - 12% 2% - 12%

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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ii) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars Gratuity

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year  171.60  130.94 
Interest cost  11.40  9.77 
Past service cost (4.82)  1.61 
Current service cost  47.12  41.68 
Benefits paid (33.65) (8.05)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  3.96 (4.35)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year  195.60  171.60 

iii) Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars Gratuity

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  192.74  -   
Interest income on plan assets  13.86  7.28 
Contributions by employer  -    189.01 
Mortality charges and taxes (1.78) (1.50)
Benefits paid (20.77)  -   
Return on plan assets (0.00) (2.05)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period  184.04  192.74 

iv) Expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:
Particulars Gratuity

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost  47.12  41.68 
Past service cost  -    1.61 
Interest cost (2.46)  2.50 
Expected return on plan assets  -    -   
Total expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss *

 44.66  45.78 

*�Included in Employee benefits expense (Refer Note 28). Actuarial loss of INR 3.96 (31 March 2019: INR (5.07)) is 
included in other comprehensive income.

v) Assets and liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:
Particulars Gratuity

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year  195.60  171.60 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period (184.04) (192.74)
Surplus in plan assets written off -  25.96 
Unrecognised actuarial (gains) / losses  -    -   
Unfunded net liability recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet *  11.56  4.82 

* Included in provision for employee benefits (Refer note 19).

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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vi) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 is as shown below:
Impact on defined benefit obligation:

Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Discount rate
1% increase  210.50  160.82 
1% decrease  182.51  183.77 

Salary rate
1% increase  184.19  181.96 
1% decrease  208.30  162.23 

vii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars Gratuity

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Years
Apr 2019 - Mar 2020  19.44  16.43 
Apr 2020 - Mar 2021  19.15  16.17 
Apr 2021 - Mar 2022  21.36  21.99 
Apr 2022 - Mar 2023  26.45  25.31 
Apr 2023 - Mar 2024  43.14  30.82 
Apr 2024 onwards  232.28  255.87 

35 Leases
Operating leases where Group is a lessee:
TAAL Tech India Private Limited (Subsidiary company) has entered into a non-cancellable operating lease for its office 
premises with a lock-in-period of 4 years and 6 months.  The lease agreement for the premises includes renewal option 
at the end of the 5 years lease term and it is probable that lessee will renew the same. The amounts disclosed in below 
table are undiscounted cash flows. Effective April 1, 2019 the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases", applied to all 
the lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method, on the date of initial application. 
Accordingly, comparatives for the year prior periods have not been retrospectively adjusted. The adoption of Ind AS 116 
has resulted in recognition of right-of-use assets o. In the financial results for the quarter ended June 30, 2019 onwards, 
the nature of expense for leasing arrangements has changed from lease rent and other rent expenses in previous periods 
to amortization on the right-of-use assets and finance cost on the corresponding lease liabilities.
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Within one year  363.67  291.37 
After one year but not more than five years  386.46  962.19 
More than five years  -    -   

36 Contingent liabilities not provided for:
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:  2,300.00  3.80 
Income tax (tax on expenses subject to inadmissibility under Income tax laws)  10.11  108.05 

Future cash outflows in respect of the above, if any, is determined only on receipt of judgement / decisions pending with 
relevant authorities. The Group does not expect the outcome of matter stated above to have a material adverse effect on 
the Group's financial condition, result of operations or cash flows.
* �Contingent liability related to estimated damage cost of Air Craft, however all the damage cost will be reimbursed by 

Insurance company
There are no capital and other commitments as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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37 Related party disclosures
(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified and certified by the Group:

Holding company
Vishkul Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. 
Entities under common control:
ISMT Limited
Laurus Tradecon Private Limited (erstwhile known as Lighto Technologies Private Limited)
TAAL Enterprises Limited
First Airways Inc.
Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited
Katra Auto Engineering Private Limited
Indian Seamless Enterprises Ltd.
Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their relatives
Mr. C S Kameswaran - (Whole Time Director up to February 06, 2018)
Mr. Salil Baldevraj Taneja (Whole Time Director, w.e.f October 01, 2018)
Mr. Prakash Saralaya - CEO & Whole Time Director (up to March 30, 2019) in subisidiary - TAAL Tech India Private Limited 
Mrs. Malavika Saralaya - Spouse of Mr. Prakash Saralaya
Non-Whole Time Director
Mr. Nirmal Chandra (upto October 2, 2018)
Mr. R Poornalingam (w.e.f. April 18, 2017)
Mrs. Rahael Shobhana Joseph (up to April 22, 2017 and re-appointed from November 16, 2017)
Mr.Arvind Nanda (w.e.f. October 11, 2018)
Mr. Muralidhar Chittetti Reddy (from May 3, 2018) - Director in subisidiary - TAAL Tech India Private Limited

(B) Details of transactions / balances with related parties for the year ended:
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(i) Entities under common control:
Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited
 - Loans given to related parties during the year  -    200.00 
 - Loan repaid by related parties during the year  -    200.00 
 - Reimbursement of expenses  -    5.13 
 - Interest income  -    16.25 
 - Rent paid  6.00  6.00 
 - Commission paid  3.12  3.12 
 - Balance payable as at the end of the year  -    25.88 
 - Balance receivable as at the end of the year  -    -   

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Managerial remuneration #
- Mr. Salil Baldevraj Taneja (Managerial Remuneration)  308.64  60.00 
- Mr. Prakash Saralaya (Managerial Remuneration)  -    191.46 
- Mr. Prakash Saralaya (Buy back of Shares)  650.00  -   
- Mrs. Malavika Saralaya  -    -   

Dividend payment
- Mr. Prakash Saralaya  -    225.00 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sitting fees  7.00  8.20 

Balance payable as at the end of the year
 - Mr. Salil Baldevraj Taneja  146.19  -   
 - Mr. Prakash Saralaya  -    4.82 

Note: No amounts pertaining to related parties have been written-off or written back during the year.
# Excludes contribution to gratuity fund and provision for leave encashment as separate figures are not ascertainable 
for the managerial personnel. Further, the Company has not paid any commission to the managerial personnel.

(C) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. 
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free except for borrowings and settlement occurs 
in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating 
to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2019: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through 
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. 

38 Prepaid rent
In December 2007, First Airways, Inc., USA [earlier a wholly owned subsidiary of 'Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited' 
(TAAL)] purchased an “Aircraft Purchase Option” which is in the nature of prepaid rent vide option agreement ("agreement") 
for Cessna Aircraft 525A: Serial Number 525A-0373 ("aircraft") from Cessna Finance Corporation (CFC). The said aircraft 
is leased to TAAL (the erstwhile parent company) vide aircraft lease No 01-0043297-0010559-01 (“aircraft lease”) dated 
December 11, 2007 for a term of 120 months.

Subsequently, the air charter business of TAAL including investments in First Airways, Inc., USA and engineering design 
services business conducted through TAAL Tech India Private Limited has been demerged into TAAL Enterprises Limited 
(TEL) on a going concern basis with effect from October 1, 2014 being the appointed date (Refer note 44). 

As per the agreement, First Airways, Inc., USA has an option to purchase the Cessna aircraft subject to aircraft lease on 
any monthly lease rental payment date or on the last day of the term of the lease. In the event this option is exercised, 
First Airways, Inc., USA shall on or before the date of purchase, pay CFC the stipulated loss value of the aircraft plus all 
other sums then due under the aircraft lease or under any other agreements, which will be considered as the “Purchase 
Option Price.

On September 20, 2018, First Airways, Inc., USA entered into an amendment no. 2 to this agreement whereby the purchase 
option period has been extended to September 12, 2020 effective from August 12, 2018.

Considering the above amended agreement, the balance lying in aircraft purchase option as at April 1, 2018 amounting to 
USD 37,070 is being amortized over the balance period of 29 months.

Further, as per the amended agreement, the stipulated loss value at the end of the 153 month lease term is USD 12,33,153.

First Airways, Inc., USA is estimating the use of the aircraft purchase option at the end of the 153 month lease term with 
mid-quarter convention. Amortization for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 amounted to USD 15,339 
and USD 37,070 respectively. The aircraft was put to use on February 20, 2008. The same has been disclosed in its 
Balance Sheet as follows:

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
USD INR USD INR

Prepaid rent  9.27  641.04  9.27  641.04 
Less: Accumulated amortization (9.27) (641.04) (9.05) (626.00)

 -    -    0.22  15.03 
Prepaid rent - Non-current portion  -    -    0.06  4.42 
Prepaid rent - Current portion  -    -    0.15  10.61 
Total Prepaid rent  -    -    0.22  15.03 

 Since the air craft grounded , the balance prepaid rent have charged off as expenses to P&L account during the FY 2019-20 
39 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of other current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short-term 
borrowings and other financial liabilities approximate the carrying amounts because of the short-term nature of these 
financial instruments.

The amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) of non-current financial assets consisting of security and term 
deposits are not significantly different from the carrying amounts.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired include cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, term deposits, 
and other financial assets.

40 Fair value hierarchy
The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

•Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

•Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

•Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Level 1 - Quoted price in active markets
Investments in mutual funds (Quoted) designated as FVTPL :  2,531.41  996.13 
Level 2 Nil Nil
Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Trade receivables  2,285.97  2,585.83 
Security deposits  190.32  169.82 
Cash and cash equivalents & Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents

 1,448.52  1,427.19 

Other current financial assets  927.98  786.55 
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings  -    36.06 
Trade payables  401.54  1,012.84 
Other current financial liabilities  2,190.67  1,073.51 
Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost for which fair value 
are disclosed
Security deposits 177.69  232.06 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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The fair values of security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are 
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including own and 
counterparty credit risk.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy 
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as shown below:

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:
Financial instrument Valuation

technique
Significant

unobservable
inputs

Range
(weighted
average)

Sensitivity of the input to 
fair value

Security deposits DCF method Discounting rate 10% - 14.5% 100 basis point increase / decrease 
in the discounting rate would result in 
decrease / increase in fair value by  
INR 5.40 lakhs (March 31, 2019: INR 6.25 
lakhs).

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, fixed deposits, trade payables, other payables and 
short-term borrowings are considered to be the same as their fair values.

41 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company is exposed to various financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
The Company's risk management is coordinated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing long-term and short-
term cash flows. The Company does not engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

(A) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as 
equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings. The Company 
is also exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to short-term borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate risk by 
having a balanced portfolio of fixed and floating rate loans and borrowings. 

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion 
of loans and borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through 
the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/
(decrease)

in basis points

Effect
on profit

before tax
March 31, 2020
INR +0.45%  - 
INR -0.45%  - 
March 31, 2019
INR +0.45% (0.16)
INR -0.45% 0.16 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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(ii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange 
rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different 
currency from the Group’s functional currency).
Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar exchange rate 
(or any other material currency), with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to 
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes 
for all other currencies is not material.

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v)
Change
in US $

rate

Effect
on 

profit
before 

tax

Change
in NOK

rate

Effect
on 

profit
before 

tax

Change
in Euro

rate

Effect
on 

profit
before 

tax

Change
 in AUD

rate

Effect
on 

profit
before 

tax

Change
 in CAD

rate

Effect
on 

profit
before 

tax
March 31, 2020
INR +2.5% 40.80 +5% 0.97 +2% 13.31 +1.5%  -   +1.5% 1.84 
INR -2.5% (40.80) -5% (0.97) -2% (13.31) -1.5%  -   -1.5% (1.84)
March 31, 2019
INR +2.5% 32.53 +5% 0.51 +2% 12.27 +1.5% 0.59 +1.5% 1.45 
INR -2.5% (32.53) -5% (0.51) -2% (12.27) -1.5% (0.59) -1.5% (1.45)

(B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Group’s receivables from deposits with landlords, 
loans and advances and other statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cash held with banks 
and financial institutions. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. 
The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Group assesses the 
credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and institutions 
and retaining sufficient balances in bank accounts required to meet a month’s operational costs. The Management 
reviews the bank accounts on regular basis and fund drawdowns are planned to ensure that there is minimal surplus 
cash in bank accounts. The Group does a proper financial and credibility check on the entities to whom such loans and 
advances and security deposits are given. The Group does not foresee any credit risks on deposits with regulatory 
authorities.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019 and 31 
March 2018  is the carrying amounts as mentioned in Note 7 to 14.

(C) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The 
Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities:

Particulars Less than 1 to 5 More than Total
1 year years 5 years

March 31, 2020
Short-term borrowings  -  -  -  - 
Long-term borrowings  -  -  -  - 
Trade payables  401.54  -    -    401.54 
Other financial liabilities  2,190.67  -    -    2,190.67 
Total  2,592.20  -    -    2,592.20 

March 31, 2019
Short-term borrowings  36.06  -    -    36.06 
Long-term borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Trade payables  1,012.84  -    -    1,012.84 
Other financial liabilities  1,073.51  -    -    1,073.51 
Total  2,122.41  -    -    2,122.41 

42 Capital management
For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other 
equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to 
maximise the shareholder value and to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
The Group monitors gearing ratio i.e. total debt in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and debt. Total debt 
comprises of current borrowing which represents loan from bank. The Group manages the capital structure and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Total equity (i)  5,052.80  4,882.76 
Total debt (ii)  -    36.06 
Overall financing (iii) = (i) + (ii)  5,052.80  4,918.83 
Gearing ratio (ii) / (iii)  -    0.01 
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March, 
2020 and 31 March, 2019. 

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Dividends
(i) Equity Shares

Dividend distributed by Parent Company
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of INR Nil (31 March 
2019 - INR 10) per fully paid share

 -    311.63 

Dividend distributed by Subsidiary Company (TAAL Tech India Private 
Limited) pertaining to Non-controlling interest
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of INR Nil (31 March 2019 
- INR 25) per fully paid share

 -    37.50 

Dividend Distribution Tax on Final dividend  -    7.71 
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of INR Nil (31 March 
2019- INR 50) per fully paid share

 -    75.00 

Dividend Distribution Tax on Interim dividend  -    15.42 
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of INR Nil (31 March 
2019 - INR 50) per fully paid share

 -    112.50 

Dividend Distribution Tax on Interim dividend  -    23.12 
(ii) Dividends not recognized at the end of the reporting period

Since year end, the Directors of the Company have recommended the 
payment of a final dividend of INR Nil per fully paid equity share (31 March 
2019: Rs. Nil).

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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43 Interest in other entities
(a) Subsidiaries

The Group’s subsidiaries as at March 31, 2020 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital 
consisting solely of equity shares that are held by the Group, and proportion of ownership interests held equals the 
voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

Name of entity Country
of

incorporation

Ownership
interest

held by the
group

Ownership
interest

held by the
non-controlling

interest

TAAL Tech India Private Limited and its subsidiaries
First Airways, Inc., USA

India 89% 11%
USA 100% 0%

(b) Non-controlling interests
Below is the summarised financial information (Consolidated financial information) for TAAL Tech India Pvt. Ltd. that 
has non-controlling interests that is material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the subsidiary are before inter-
company eliminations with the parent company.

(i) Information regarding non-controlling interest:
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2018

Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest:
- TAAL Tech India Pvt. Ltd. (TTIPL)  -  559.58 

(ii) Summarised Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss of TTIPL:
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2018

Revenue  12,563.10  14,134.38 
Other income  661.96  688.88 
Total Income  13,225.06  14,823.27 

Purchases  -  - 
Employee benefits expense  7,470.93  7,630.70 
Finance costs  133.59  161.66 
Depreciation and amortization expense  440.46  128.59 
Other expenses  1,972.05  3,382.86 
Total Expenses  10,017.03  11,303.81 

Profit /(Loss) before tax  3,208.03  3,519.46 
Income tax expense  626.97  1,084.94 
Profit/(Loss) for the year  2,581.06  2,434.42 
Other comprehensive income for the year  37.51  20.76 
Total Comprehensive income for the year  2,618.57  2,454.78 

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Equity shareholders of parent  2,410.57  2,086.56 
Non-controlling interest  208.00  368.22 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(iii) Summarised Consolidated Balance Sheet of TTIPL:
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2018

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets  65.24  103.82 
Financial assets (Non-current)  180.82  158.94 
Deferred tax asset (net)  419.47  429.52 
Other non-current assets  -    87.32 
Financial assets (Current)  5,871.22  3,797.48 
Other current assets  1,200.76  1,192.68 
Total Assets  7,737.51  5,769.76 
Other non-current liabilities and provisions  27.70  78.86 
Financial liabilities (Current)  2,213.48  1,358.01 
Other current liabilities and provisions  1,909.22  602.37 
Total Liabilities  4,150.40  2,039.25 

Total Equity  3,587.11  3,730.52 
Total Equity attributable to : 
Equity shareholders of parent company  3,587.11  3,170.94 
Non-controlling interest  -    559.58 

(iv) Summarised Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of TTIPL:
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2018

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities  3,502.14  2,320 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (2,372.41)  (55.01)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (765.55)  (1,808.33)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and bank 
balances other than cash and cash equivalents

364.23  457.09 

44 In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement under section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Scheme”) between 
Taneja Aerospace and Aviation Limited (TAAL) and TAAL Enterprises Limited (“the Company”), TAAL has demerged its Air 
Charter Business including investment in First Airways Inc., USA and Engineering Design Services Business conducted 
through TAAL Tech India Private Limited into the Company. Pursuant to the Scheme as sanctioned by the Hon’ble High 
Court of Madras vide order dated June 22, 2015, received on July 23, 2015, the Air Charter Business of TAAL including 
investment in First Airways Inc., USA and Engineering Design Services Business conducted through TAAL Tech India 
Private Limited has been demerged into the Company on a going concern basis with effect from October 1, 2014 being 
the appointed date. The certified copy of the said order of the Hon’ble High Court of Madras has been filed with the 
Registrar of Companies, Chennai on August 21, 2015 and as such the Scheme has become effective from that date.

As per Clause 9.2 of the Scheme of Arrangement as approved / sanctioned by the Hon’ble Madras High Court, Taneja 
Aerospace and Aviation Limited (TAAL) will carry on the business and activities relating to the demerged charter business 
for and on account of and in trust for TAAL Enterprises Limited (TEL) until the time TEL obtains the requisite statutory 
licences required for carrying on the demerged charter business. The said licences are yet to be obtained and accordingly 
the demerged charter business has continued to be operated by TAAL in trust for and on behalf of TEL including banking 
transactions, statutory compliances and all other commercial activities. Accordingly, the accounting entries pertaining to 
the demerged charter business are accounted in the books of account of TEL.

45 Segment reporting
Business segments
The primary reporting of the Group has been performed on the basis of business segment. The Chief Operating Decision 
Maker (CODM) reviews the operations of the Group as 3 operating segments viz "Air Charter", "Trading of Goods" and 
"Engineering Design Service". Segments have been identified and reported based on the nature of the service, the risks 
and returns, the organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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46 Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (CSR)
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the 
Company during the year

-  41.14  -    19.98 

(b) Details of amount spent towards CSR is 
as follows:

Paid in 
cash

Yet to be
paid in cash

Paid in 
cash

Yet to be
paid in cash

(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset  -  -  -  - 
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  16.02  25.12  2.20  17.78 

47 Disclosure of additional information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, pertaining to 
the parent company and subsidiaries:

(i) Net Assets (Total Assets – Total Liabilities)
Name of the company 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

As % of
Consolidated

net assets

Net assets As % of
Consolidated

net assets

Net assets

Parent company
TAAL Enterprises Limited 18.56%  937.57 23.30%  1,161.65 
Indian subsidiary
Direct subsidiary
TAAL Tech India Pvt. Ltd. 60.45%  3,054.37 67.89%  3,385.04 
Foreign subsidiaries
Direct subsidiary
First Airways, Inc., USA 1.59%  80.10 1.88%  93.90 
Indirect subsidiaries
TAAL Technologies Inc., USA 18.01%  910.09 6.89%  343.68 
TAAL Tech Innovations GmbH, Austria 0.00% 0.00 -0.30% (14.93)
TAAL Tech GmbH, Switzerland 1.40%  70.66 0.34%  16.72 

100.00%  5,052.80 100.00%  4,986.06 
Adjustment arising on consolidation  -    456.27 
Non-controlling interest  -   (559.58)
TOTAL  5,052.80  4,882.76 

Note: �The above figures are stated at gross values after eliminating investment in subsidiaries and goodwill arising on 
consolidation but without eliminating intra group balances.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(ii) Share in Profit or Loss
Name of the company 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

As % of
Consolidated
profit / (loss)

Profit /
(Loss)

As % of
Consolidated
profit / (loss)

Profit /
(Loss)

Parent company
TAAL Enterprises Limited -7.24% (172.83) 33.26%  1,236.02 
Indian subsidiary
Direct subsidiary
TAAL Tech India Pvt. Ltd. 99.83%  2,383.95 61.57%  2,287.89 
Foreign subsidiaries
Direct subsidiary
First Airways, Inc., USA -0.89% (21.16) 1.22%  45.51 
Indirect subsidiaries
TAAL Technologies Inc., USA 8.09%  193.10 3.89%  144.46 
TAAL Tech Innovations GmbH, Austria 0.00%  -   -0.03% (1.25)
TAAL Tech GmbH, Switzerland 0.21%  4.92 0.09%  3.42 

100%  2,387.99 100%  3,716.04 
Adjustment arising on consolidation (456.27) (1,537.08)
TOTAL  1,931.71  2,178.96 

Note: The above figures are stated at gross values without eliminating intra-group transactions.

(iii) Share in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Name of the company 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

As % of
Consolidated

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Other
Comprehensive

Income

As % of
Consolidated

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Parent company
TAAL Enterprises Limited 0.00%  -   -12.55% (2.78)
Indian subsidiary
Direct subsidiary
TAAL Tech India Pvt. Ltd. 83.58%  37.51 93.60% 20.76 
Foreign subsidiaries
Direct subsidiary
First Airways, Inc., USA 16.42%  7.37 18.95% 4.20 
Indirect subsidiaries
TAAL Technologies Inc., USA 0.00%  -   0.00% 0.00 
TAAL Tech Innovations GmbH, Austria 0.00%  -   0.00% 0.00 
TAAL Tech GmbH, Switzerland 0.00%  -   0.00% 0.00 
TOTAL 100%  44.88 100%  22.18 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(iv) Share in Total Comprehensive Income
Name of the company 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

As % of
Consolidated

Total
Comprehensive

Income

Total
Comprehensive

Income

As % of
Consolidated

Total
Comprehensive

Income

Total
Comprehensive

Income

Parent company
TAAL Enterprises Limited -7.10% (172.83) 33.00%  1,233.23 
Indian subsidiary
Direct subsidiary
TAAL Tech India Pvt. Ltd. 99.53% 2,421.47 61.77%  2,308.66 
Foreign subsidiaries
Direct subsidiary
First Airways, Inc., USA -0.57% (13.80) 1.33%  49.71 
Indirect subsidiaries
TAAL Technologies Inc., USA 7.94% 193.10 3.87%  144.46 
TAAL Tech Innovations GmbH, Austria 0.00% 0.00 -0.03%  -1.25 
TAAL Tech GmbH, Switzerland 0.20% 4.92 0.09%  3.42 

100% 2,432.86 100%  3,737.22 
Adjustment arising on consolidation (456.27)  -1,537.08 
TOTAL 100% 1,976.59 100%  2,200.14 

48 Goodwill impairment testing
(a) Goodwill :

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Capital Reserve on acquisition of TAAL Tech India Pvt. Ltd.  65.77  65.77 
Goodwill on acquisition of First Airways, Inc. USA  -  (456.27)
Net (Goodwill)/ Capital Reserve  65.77  (390.50)

(b) Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired, 
relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Group's Cash Generating Units 
(CGU) or groups of CGU’s expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the business combination. A CGU is 
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows 
from other assets or group of assets. Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, 
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair 
value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be 
derived  from the CGU.

Total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU 
and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An 
impairment loss on goodwill is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and is not reversed in the 
subsequent period (if any).

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Following is a summary of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill :
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Carrying value at the beginning  (456.27)  (456.27)
Goodwill on acquisition  -  - 
Goodwill re-classified under assets held for sale  456.27  - 
Translation differences  -  - 
Carrying value at the end  -  (456.27)

Based on the impairment assessment performed by the Company, the goodwill relating to Subsidiary - First Airways 
Inc has been impaired.

49 The Parent Company operates a chartered plane obtained under a lease agreement dated December 11, 2007 which is 
the sole aircraft being operated by the Company as a part of its business operations. As per the lease agreement with 
the lessor, the lease was for a period of 120 months which expired on December 11, 2017. During the year 2017-18, the 
Company and Lessor agreed for an extension of the lease for a period of one year from December 12, 2017 to December 
11, 2018. During the year 2018-19, the Company has entered into an amended lease agreement dated September 21, 
2018 for the aircraft taken on lease from Cessna Finance Corporation extending the lease up to September 2020 for 
carrying on the business and activities related to the demerged charter business. Further, as per the purchase option 
agreement entered between the Company, Lessor and First Airways Inc. (Wholly owned subsidiary), First Airways Inc. has 
an option to purchase the aircraft at the end of lease period. On this basis, the Company intends to either renew the lease 
term or exercise the purchase option at the end of lease period through its subsidiary. In view of above, the Company has 
prepared financial statements on going concern basis.

50 In the opinion of the Board, current assets and loans and advances are of the value stated if realised in the ordinary course 
of business. Further, provision for all the known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of amount considered reasonably 
necessary.

51 Effective from Tuesday, July 05, 2016 the equity shares of the parent company got listed and admitted to dealings on the 
Bombay Stock Exchange.

52 Buyback of Shares

During the year Company has approved to buy back 1,50,000 equity shares from Mr. Prakash Saralaya, the buyback will 
be completed on a progressive basis by April 2023 in 3 equal tranches as per terms and other conditions of the buyback 
agreement. Pursuant to the aforementioned the first tranche of the buyback has been completed.

Pursuant to the Board Resolution and other regulatory approvals received on, 17 Jan 2020, 50000 shares of the Company 
which are issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Capital of the Company were bought back from an eligible shareholder 
as on the notified Record Date at a price of Rs 1,250 per equity share. Consequent to this buyback, the paid-up capital of 
the Company has been reduced to Rs 95,00,000 from Rs 1,00,00,000 /- . The financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2020 include the impact of the above share buyback. Pursuant to the aforementioned the first tranche of the buy 
back has been completed during the year and the balance payable on remaining two tranches has been recorded as a 
financial liability at fair value.

53 The management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company's operations, financial performance 
and position as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 and has concluded that there is no significant impact which is 
required to be recognized in the financial statements. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes 
to future economic conditions. 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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54 Pursuant to the leasing arrangement for the aircraft, the Company is required to maintain the aircraft and undertake 
repairs for any damages, considering the assessment of damage is not completed and also the insurance claim process is 
ongoing, the contingent liability towards any repair costs to be borne by the Company are currently ascertainable. 

55 The Company is in the process of appointing a suitable candidate as CFO on account of the vacancy caused by the 
resignation of the earlier incumbent

56 Previous year figures have been re-grouped / re-classified to confirm presentation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule 
III of the Act.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies

PART “A”: SUBSIDIARIES
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Name of 
Subsidiary 

Reporting 
Currency 
in case 

of foreign 
subsidiaries^

Share 
Capital

Reserves 
& 

Surplus

Total 
Assets 

Total 
Liabilities

Investments Turnover Profit 
Before 

Taxation

Provision 
for 

Taxation

Profit 
After 

Taxation

Proposed 
Dividend

% of 
Shareholding

1 TAAL Tech 
India Pvt Ltd

Rs 95.00 3287.57 8085.93 4703.39 32.58 12563.10 2927.11 543.14 2383.97 Nil 89.47%

2 TAAL 
Technologies 
Inc. USA

US $ 18.88 516.86 910.09 313.55 0.00 2940.20 274.66 81.55 193.10 

Nil

100%

3 TAAL Tech 
GmbH, 
Switzerland

CHF 13.70 20.83 74.16 32.77 0.00 129.99 6.19 1.14 5.05 100%

4 TAAL Tech 
GmbH, 
Austria

Euro 19.34 100%

5 First Airways 
Inc. USA

US $ 477.49 (397.39) 80.10  -   2.54 17.61 3.56 21.16 100%

^ Exchange rate as on March 31, 2020: 1US $=Rs.75.3859, 1CHF=Rs. 78.3152
Notes:
A Name of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- None

B Name of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil

PART "B": ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES - None

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants TAAL Enterprises Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W CIN: L62200TN2014PLC096373

Deepak Rao Salil Taneja Sourabh Sonawane
Partner Chairman Company Secretary
Membership No: 113292 DIN: 00328668 Membership No. A58561

Place: Bengaluru Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020 Date: July 30, 2020
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